TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
June 27, 2019 - 12:00 o'clock p.m,
Classroom 7 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
Open Session - Assembly Rooms 1,2 & 3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda Item Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
2 | Approval of agenda
3 | Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 19-018,
members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the
Board of Directors.
4 | Oral Announcement of Items to be Discussed During Closed Session
{Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.7)
5 | Motion to go into Closed Session
6 | Closed Session 1 Hour

a. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54956.9(d) 2 (1 Matter)

b. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Commitiees
(Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

¢. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program

Date of Disclosure: TBD

d. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

7 | Motion to go into Open Session

8 | Open Session

Open Session — Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 1:00 p.m.

9 | Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
{Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Time

Agenda ltem Allotted | Requestor
10 | Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 3 min, Standard
11 | Public Comments - Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.
NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.
12 | Special Recognition —
Victor Souza, M.D., Chief of Staff 5 min. Chair
13 | Introductions —
a) Mark Yamanaka, M.D., Chief of Staff Elect 5 min. Board Chair
b) Gene Ma, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 5 min. CEO
c) Jeffrey Scott, Esq., Board Counsel 5 min. Board Chair
14 | Report from TCHD Foundation — Jennifer Paroly, President 10 min. Standard
15 | Appreciation of Mary Gleisberg, Auxiliary President 5 min. Board Chair
16 | TCHD Auxiliary — Mary Gleisberg, Auxiliary President 5 min, Standard
a) Introduction of Jeff Marks, President Elect 5 min. M. Gleisberg
17 | May 2019 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO
18 | New Business
a) Consideration to approve Resolution No. 796, A Resolution of the Tri-City|| 5 min. CFO
Healthcare District Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Tri-City
Healthcare District for the Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2019 and
Ending June 30, 2020.
19 | Old Business —
a) Approval of Board Policy 19-009 — Requests for Information or 5 min. Ad Hoc Comm.
Assistance by Board Members
20 | Chief of Staff 10 min. Chief of Staff
a) Consideration of June 2019 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments
Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals as
recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on June 24, 2019,
21 | Consideration of Consent Calendar 5 min. Standard

Administrative & Board Committees

(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or puiled from Consent Calendar.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

June 27, 2019




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

(2) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.

(1) Administrative Committee

9)

a) Patient Care Policies & Procedures

Cancer Education Procedure

Disposal of Chemotherapy Waste Procedure

Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedure

End Tidal C)2 (EtCO2) Monitor Procedure (DELETE)

Family Presence During Resuscitation Policy

Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and
Neonates Policy

Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient Standardized
Procedure

Postural-Orthostatic Vital Signs, Obtaining Procedure
(DELETE)

Vasc Band Hemostat: Radial Artery Compression Device

Procedure

b) Administrative
1) Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to Readmit Policy

¢) Administrative Pay Practices
1) Bereavement Leave for Benefited Employees Policy 435.01
2) Compensation for Mandatory Education Policy 474.01

d) Medical Staff
1) Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointment
8710-548
2) Discharge Planning for Pediatric and Adolescent Patient Policy
8710-561 (DELETE)

e) NICU
1) Nasogastric (NG) and Orogastric (OG) Tube Insert{on,
Maintenance, and Removal Procedure

f) Qutpatient Behavioral Health
1) Co-Treatment of Patients Policy

d) Surgical Services
1} Nursing Documentation for PANS Unit Policy (DELETE)
2) PACU Services in Alternate Area (ICU) After Hours Weekends
Palicy (DELETE)
3) Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice Policy

h} Telemetry
1) Management of Telemetry Patient Policy

i) Women and Newborn Services
1) Car Seat Challenge Test Procedure
2) Neonatal Resuscitation Team for Scheduled Cesarean
Sections Procedure (DELETE)
3) Neonatal Team Attendance at a Delivery Policy

]} Pre-Printed Orders

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

June 27, 2019




Time
Allotted Requestor

Agenda Item

1) Outpatient Infusion Orders 8711-1910
2) Outpatient Transfusion Orders 8711-1910

(2) Board Committees

. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee CHAC Comm.

Director Chavez, Committee Chair
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for

informational purposes)

B. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee FO&P Comm.
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair

Open Community Seats — 1
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for

informational purposes)

1) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Mohammad Jamshidi-
Nezhad and David Spiegel as Cardiovascular Health
Institute — Operations Committee members for a term of 12
months, beginning July 1, 2019 and end June 30, 2020, not
to exceed four hours per month at an hourly rate of $210
for an annual and term cost of $10 080

2) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Ponec as the coverage
physician for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2020, not to exceed an average of 8
hours per month or 96 hours annually, at an hourly rate of
$210 for an annual and term cost of $20,160.

) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Mohammad JamsHidi-
Nezhad, Ashish Kabra, and David Spiegel as the covdrage
physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2020, not to exceed 12 hours per mgnth
per physician for a total of 432 hours annually, at an hpurly
rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $90,720,

Of an agreement wi ; ndrew
Deemer and Ashish Kabra as Cardiovascular Health
Institute — Quality Committee members for a term of 12
months, beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020,
not to exceed six hours per month at an hourly rate of $210
for an annual and term cost of $15,120.

5} Approval of an agreement with Dr. Karim EI-Sherief as the |
Medical Director of Cardiac Rehabilitation for a term of 24
months beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, not
to exceed an average of 44 hours per month or 528 hours
annually, at an hourly rate of $185.50 for an annual cost of
$97,944, and a total term cost not to exceed $195,888.

) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Sharon Slowik, as the
Supervising Physician, for a term of 24 months, beginning
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed an
average of 42.5 hours per month or 510 hours annually, at
an hourly rate of $160 for an annual cost of $81,600 and a
total cost for the term of $163,200.

} Approval of an agreement with Dr. Mark Yamanaka, ICU
Medical Director for a term of 12 months beginning July 1,
2019 through June 30, 2020, not to exceed an average of
20 hours per month or 240 hours annually, at an hourly rate

$42 000

8) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Caroline Vilchis, Bradley

TCHOD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4- June 27, 2019




Agenda item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

| $475,150.

Frasier, Michael Guerena, Jason Philips and Aargn
Boonjindasup, as the Urology ED-Call coverage physicians
for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through
June 30, 2021, at a daily rate of $650, for a term cost of

9)

Approval of an agreement with Anesthesia Services Medical
Group {ASMG) for anesthesia coverage for a term of 24
months, beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, not
to exceed a total cost of $1,958,360 for the term.

10]

Mohammad Pashmforough, Pargol Samani, David Spiegel,
Kenneth Carr, Karim El-Sherief and Anitha Rajamanickam
as the Cardiology-General coverage physicians for a term
of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2020, at a daily rate of $300, for an annual and term cost of

| $109.800.

1

Approval of an agreement with Drs. David Spiegel, Kenneth
Carr, Karim El-Sherief and Anitha Rajamanickam, as the
coverage physicians for Cardiology-STEMI, for a term of 12
months, beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, at a
daily rate of $1,000, for an annual term cost of $366,000.

~Approval of an agreement with Drs. Christopher

Devereaux, Thomas Krol, Javaid Shad, Michael Shim,
Matthew Viernes, as the Gastroenterology General & ERP
ED Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, at a daily
rate of $775 for GI, for an annual cost of $283,650, and
ERCP, at a daily rate of $500 for an annual cost of

$183,000 and a total cost for the term of $466.650, |

13 greement wi rs. Michael Burke, Brian

| $274.500,
14) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Robert Pendleton,

Goelitz, Justin Gooding, Charles McGraw, Michael Noud,
Donald Ponec and Richard Saxon as the Interventiona!

Radiology (IR) ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term o
12 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024,
at a daily rate of $750, for an annual and term cost of

Mark Smith, Maulik Zaveri, Henry Hudson, Peter Krall,
Srinivas lyengar, Logan Haak, James Davies, Bradley
Greider, Atul Jain, Neeta Varshney, as the Ophthalmology
ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, at a daily
rate of $300 for an annual and term cost of $109,800.

1

)]

17

|_annual and term cost of 8164 700
|) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Brian Mudd, as the

Approval of an agreement with Drs. Neville Alleyne, Payanﬁ
Moazzaz, Tyrone Hardy, Mark Sterm, Kevin Yoo, Sunil
Jeswani and Howard Tung as the Spine ED-Call coverage
physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2020, at a daily rate of $450, for a total

Oral/Max Surgery ED-all coverage physician for a term of
12 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020,
at a daily rate of $350, for an annual and term cost of

Approval of an agreement with Aya Healthcare for contract
labor managed service agreement for a term of 36 months,
beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, for an

TCHD Regular Board

of Directors Meeting Agenda -5-

June 27, 2019




Time

Agenda Item Allotted Requestor
annual cost of $4.5M and a total cost for the term of
$13.5M.
18 Approval of an agreement with Anesthesia Services
Medical Group (ASMG) for anesthesia coverage for a term
of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2019, through June 30,
19) |Approval of an agreement with Advance Sleep Medicine .
Services, Inc. for interpretation of sleep screening for a
term of 12 months, beginning June 1, 2019 through May
31, 2020, for an annual and total term cost of $24,500.
airs Committee PAC
Director Reno, Committee Chair
(No meeting held in June, 2019)
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Audit, Comp. &
Director Schallock, Committee Chair Ethics Comm.
Open Community Seais — 2
(No meeting held in June, 2019)
. Ad Hoc Board Bylaw & Policies Committee (Policy Number &
Minor Changes Unless Noted as Revised)
1) 19-006 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
2) 19-007 Use of Board Committee Minutes at Meetings of Board
of Directors
3) 19-021 Use of Board Counsel by Members of the Board of
Directors
4) 19-023 ~ Responsibility for Decision-making on Legal Matters
(Revised)
5) 19-027 — Prohibition of Political Activities, Solicitation,
Distribution of Literature and Goods on District Properties
6) 19-030 - Government Claims Act Policy: Claims Presentation
(Revised)
7) 19-031 — Recruitment of Community Members for Board
Committees
8) 19-038 - Comprehensive Code of Conduct (Revised)
9) 19-041 — Board Policy on Public Information (Revised)
(3) Minutes — Approval of: Standard
a) Regular Board of Directors Meeting — May 30, 2019 (deferred to next
Regular meeting)
(4) Meetings and Conferences — None
(5} _Dues and Memberships
1) MCOL — Payers & Providers Site License $219.00
22 | Discussion of ltems Pulled from Consent Agenda 10 min. | Standard
23 [ Reports (Discussion by exception only) 0-5 min. | Standard

{a) Dashboard — Included

(b) Construction Report ~ None

{(c) Lease Report - (May, 2019)

(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report May, 2018)

{e) Seminar/Conferenc

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeling Agenda -G-

June 27, 2019




Time
Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor

24 | Comments by Members of the Public 5-10 Standard

NOTE: Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3) minutes

minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on

any item not on the agenda.
25 | Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. | Standard
26 | Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. | Standard
27 | Report from Chairperson 3 min. | Standard
28 | Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 1.5 hours
29 | Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -7-

June 27, 2019




RESOLUTION NO. 796

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
FOR TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
COMMENCING JULY 1, 2019 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE Xill B OF THE

CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA; CODE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, Section 1 of Article XIII B of the Constitution of the State of California
provides that the total annual appropriations of each local government shall not exceed the
appropriations limit of such entity of government for the prior year, adjusted for changes in the
cost of living and population, subject to certain specified exceptions in said Article; and

WHEREAS, Section 8 of Article XIll B of the Constitution of the State of California
defines “Appropriations subject to limitation™ of an entity of local government as “any
authorization to expand during a fiscal year the proceeds of taxes levied by or for that entity and
the proceeds of state subventions to that entity” (other than subventions made pursuant to new
programs or services mandates by the State Legislature) “exclusive of refunds to taxes”; and

WHEREAS, Section 7910 of the Government Code of the State of California provides
that each year the governing body of each local jurisdiction shall, by resolution, establish its
appropriations iimit for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article XIli B of the Constitution of
the State of California at a regularly scheduled meeting or noticed special meeting; and

WHEREAS, the documentation used in determining the appropriations limit adopted in
this resolution has been available to the pubiic for fifteen (15) days prior to the adoption of this

resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

1. The appropriations limit for TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, pursuant to
Article XIIl B of the Constitution of the State of California for the fiscal year commencing July 1,
2019 and ending June 30, 2020 is not to exceed $15,370,085.



2. In accordance with Section 2, Article X!II B of the Constitution of the State of
California, any revenues received by TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT in excess of that
amount, which is appropriated in compliance with Article XIII B of the Constitution of the State
of California, during the fiscal year shall be returned by a revision of tax rates or fee schedules
within the next two subsequent fiscal years.

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 27th day of June, 2019.

Leigh Anne Grass, Chairperson of the
TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT and
of the Board of Directors thereof

ATTEST:

Julie Nygaard, Secretary of the
TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

TCHD Resolution 796 -2- June 27, 2019



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1719-009
POLICY TITLE: Requests for Information or Assistance by Board Members

1. Requests for information or assistance by individual Directors requiring more than 15
minutes of staff time shall be directed in writing to the Chairperson of the Board, with a
copy to the President/CEO or his/her designee. All questions regarding confidentiality
and privilege shall be directed to the Board Counsel, Compliance Officer or their
designees. All requests shall be stated clearly and shall be specific. In making requests,
Directors shall keep in mind that District staff time and resources are both limited and
expensive, and that staff members have other duties.

2. All requests for information which concern another Director shall be directed in writing to
the Chairperson of the Board, with a copy to the President/CEQ or his/her designee. A
copy of the written request shall be directed to all members of the Board including the
member conceming whom information is requested, along with any information provided
in response to the request.

3. All requests for information relating to Closed Session materials, including requested
inspection, shall be directed to the Chairperson of the Board, with a copy to the
President/CEOQ or his/her designee and shall be subject to the confidentiality provisions of
Policy #19-022.

4. Requests for information and assistance shall receive a response as soon as reasonably
possible, although not necessarily immediately, The President/CEO shall have the final
authority to determine by what means and when District staff responds to the request. If,
in the judgment of the Chairperson of the Board or the President/CEQ, the request
requires a material amount of employee time or the request includes information or
documents which are confidential or privileged or the request is one which is deemed
appropriate for Board consideration, the President/CEO or Chairperson may ask for a
decision from the full Board of Directors before action is taken.

5. Should any Director’s request for information or analysis require more than 30 minutes
of staff time, the Chairperson or the CEO may require the Director to secure Board
approval for the work.

6. This Policy shall not preclude the Chairperson from exercising authority granted under
District Bylaws or Board Policy: Role and Powers of Chairperson. Nothing in this
policy shall be construed to limit the rights of a Director under the Public Records Act,

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07

"



Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07

Received by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/01/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/16/10

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14

Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17
Reviewed by Ad Hoc Bvlaw& Policy Committee: 05/2019

Approved by Board of Directors:

12



(’7 Tri-City
Medical Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
june 12,2019

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 06/28/2019 - 05/31/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staffand are therefore recommended for appointment effective 06/28/2019 through 05/31/2021:

. ustin Anesthesiogl

e KIRK r Teleradiol R

. TI 1 iol an Diego |

e SEIF h MD /Anesthesigl ASM

« SH BERGER, Je D en edicine (TeamHealt

s SIL FF, Morgan MD/Qrth ic Sur rth i iali f North n

WONG, Richard MD/Pathology (North Coast Pathology)

13



(’3 Tri-Cﬁ —
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER |

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4
june 12,2019
A - |

Attachment 8

BIENNJIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 07/01/2019 -06/30,/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 07/01/2019 through 06/30/2021, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

° DH Team D rn dicine iv
¢ ANTQUN, David, MD/Internal Medicine /Provisional
° vi ardiol ctiv

. A, Frank Pulmona dicine fActiv

. R Perrin, MD /Intern dicine/Refer Follow

» DEMBITSKY, Zachary, MD/Emergency Medicine/Active

e D IER, Laur Neurgl ctiv

» FOLKERTH, Theodgre ardiothoracic Sur Activ

s KA rry, MD/Pathology - Anatomic/Activ

» rbert Radiation 1 tive
s LE RD, Lisa, M tri 1 Activ
» LL Xiangli, MD/Internal Medicine/Active
® A T ici ctiv
. Ir D /Neurgl tiv
. n mi dicin fer and Follow
» PREGERSON, David, MD/Emergency Medicine /Active
. 1 D 1 l iv
Pagelof 2

14



Tri-City

‘ Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4
june 12, 2019

Attachment B
° I i iatri I iv

W t 1 icin r Follow

TUPIN, Jeremy, MD/Diagnostic Radigl Active

VILCHIS, Caroli D tiv

WSKI, Ri T n iol tiv

UPDATE TO PREVIOUS REAPPOINTMENT:

. THEW, r ardiol tiv

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 06/30/2019 unless otherwise noted)
Automatic:

e MCWHIRTER, Robert, MD/Emergency Medicine

Voluntary:

° Y I n iol

e LEE Yu-P rth i rge
Page 2 0f2

15



|
I
|

=’3 Tri-C_i
(‘) Mediéll Center ]

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
June 12,2019

— — —— -

The following practitioners were given six months from the last reappointment date to complete their
outstanding proctoring, and given an additional six month period after that one. These practitioners failed to
meet the proposed deadline and are approved for an additional 6 months to complete their proctoring for the
privileges listed below. Failure to meet the proctoring requirement by December 31, 2019 would result in these
privileges automatically relinquishing,

. RB i D OB/GYN
. INCE, Iennifer, Pediatrics
s S imani, MD Oncology

ITIONAL PRIVILEGE REQUEST (Effective 6 2 unl therwi cifi
The following practitioners requested the following privilege(s) and met the initial criteria for the
privilege(s):

e ALLEYNE, Neville, MD Orthopedic Surgery
 FARHOOMAND, Kaveh, DO Internal Medicine
¢« MOAZZAZ Payam MD Orthopedic Surgery
NGE IN PRIV RD ectiv 28/2019, unl therwise ified
The following practitioners are transitioning to the new version of the OB/GYN Privilege Card.
e ARRIETA, Iris. MD OB/GYN
: P ticia MD OB/GYN
¢+ COFFLER, Mickey MD OB/GYN
o EBRAHIMI-ADIB, Tanna MD 0B/GYN
e GERBER, Michele MD OB/GYN
. IKKIS. Chri D OB/GYN
. EZ. Sandr QB/GYN
* MAZAREL Rahele DO OB/GYN
e MOSTOFIAN, Eimaneh MD B/GYN
e POUNTNEY LEV rl D OB/GYN

16



(:a Tri-City
Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3
June 12, 2019 L L

PROCTORING RECOMMENDATIONS (Effective 6/28/2019. unless otherwi ifi

. RRJETA, Iris M OB/GYN

. PB ticia MD OB/GYN

e GHOSH, Tanushree DQ Pediatric

o ROHER, Alexander MD Anesthesiology

WAKILY., Hussna MD General/Vascular Surgery



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA
June 5", 2019

R YVOU

CONTACT: Barbara Vggelsang, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Cancer Education Procedure

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Disposal of Chemotherapy Waste Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedure

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

End Tidal CO2 (EtCO2) Monitor Procedure

DELETE

Forward to BOD for Approval

Family Presence During Resuscitation Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics,
Adolescents and Neonates Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult
Patient Standardized Procedure

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Postural-Orthostatic Vital Signs, Obtaining
Procedure

DELETE

Forward to BOD for Approval

© X N @ sl N

Vasc Band Hemostat: Radial Artery
Compression Device Procedure

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to
Readmit Policy

NEW

Forward to BOD for Approval

Administrative Pay Practices

1. Bereavement Leave for Benefited
Employees Policy 435.01

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Compensation for Mandatory Education
Policy 474.01

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Medical Staff

1. Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical
Staff Reappointment 8710-548

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Discharge Planning for Pediatric and
Adolescent Patient Policy 8710-561

DELETE

Forward to BOD for Approval

NICU

1. Nasogastric (NG) and Orogastric
(OG) tube Insertion, Maintenance,
and Removal Procedure

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Outpatient Behavioral Health

1. Co-treatment of Patients Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Hours Weekends Policy

Surgical Services
1. Nursing Documnentation for PANS Unit Policy DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval
2. PACU Services in Alternate Area (ICU) After DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

3. Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice
Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approvai

-

alemetry

'-[ 1. Management of Telemetry Patient Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Page 1

18



. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

A0 S YOU

A

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA
June 5", 2019
CONTACT: Barbara Vogelsang, CNE

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations
Women and Newborn Services

3 Year Review,

1. Car Seat Challenge Test Procedure Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Neonatal Resuscitation Team for Scheduled

Cesarean Sections Procedure DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

3. gsl?:;tal Team Attendance at a Delivery Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
Pre-Printed Orders

1. Outpatient Infusion Orders 8711-1910 ST T Forward to BOD for Approval

Practice Change
3 Year Review,
Practice Change

2. Outpatient Transfusion Orders 8711-1910 Forward to BOD for Approval

Page 2 19



(@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Distrbution:
Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CANCER EDUCATION

Purpose:

To outline ferthe-registered-rurse-the educational needs of eurcancer patients at Tri-
City Healthcare DistrictMedical-Genter (TCHDMG).

Equipment:

American Cancer Referral Form and Z6MG-TCHD Intranet

1.

A PROCEDURE:

Patients admitted to Fri-City-Medical-Center-(TCHDMG)} with a diagnosis of cancer, and their

families, will be offered the choice of a referral to the American Cancer Society for continuity of

care, which offers eur-patients/families support in the-fellewing-areas including, but are-not

limited to:

a. Current Cancer Treatment and Research

b. Financial Support (e.g., medications, rides-transportation to treatments, child care
ete:)

c. Support Groups (i-e.g., Look Good and Feel Good Program, Road to Recovery, Man to

Man, Breast Cancer Support-ets:)

Sponsor Program

Clinical Trials

Managing Your Cancer Experience

g. Resources for a Healthy Life

Patients admitted to TCHDMGE with a diagnosis of cancer, and their families, will be given

information on how to participate in and access information on clinical triails. This educational

information for patients/families is located on the Tri-CityMG Intranet under “Patient

Information® - Learn About and Find Clinical Trials.-or Patients/familiesy can also access this

infarmation by calling 1-800-303-5691 from the American Cancer Society.

If the patient/erfamily would like to be referred to the American Cancer Society, social worker,

case manager the Registered Nurse (RN} shall:

a. Have patient/er-family complete the American Cancer Society Referral Form (Tri-

CityMC Intranet under “Patient Information-)-and-. The registered nurse, social worker

or case manager may assist patient in completing the form if patient is unable to

complete the form independently but verbally agrees to the referral.

Fax the form to the Amencan Cancer Somety (fax number is on the form) Ihe—;egrstarad

~oo

3:b.

A representatlveSemaaae from the Amencan Cancer Socnety will contact patlentler—famlly
The following are other educational resources for cancer patients and their family. (Handout for
patients is available on the Tri-CityM& intranet under Departments > Clinical > References >
“Patient Information- > Cancer Resources.)

National Comprehensive Cancer Network  www.nccn.com/

Cancer Action Network WWW.acscan.orq

Cancer Survivor's Network csn.cancer.org/

Cancer Research WWW.cancer.org

American Cancer Society www.cancer.org/docroot/home/index.asp
American Institute for Cancer Research www.aicr.org

American Society of Clinical Oncology WWW.asC0.0rg

Cancer News on the Net www.cancernews.com

CancerNet (National Cancer Institute) cancernet.nci.nih.qov

Cansearch: A Guide to Cancer Resources
on the Internet

i R N

www.cansearch.org/canserch

| Depariment

Clinical Nursing

Pharmacy & Medical Professional

ReviewPatient
Care Services
Content Expert

Policies &
Procedures
Committea

Nurse
Exacutive
Committee

Division of
Oncology

Therapeutics
Committee

Executive
Committee

Administration
Approval

Aftairs
Commiittes

Board of
Directors

0710, 07113,
06/17

08/10, 07/13,

o717

09110, 07113,

0717

0319

nla

07/13, 05119

06/19

09/10, 08/13,
nfa

08/10,
08/13

20



Patient Care Services-Procedura-Manual
Cancer Education Procedure

Page 2 of 2

C.

k. National Cancer Institute's bibliographic
database cnetdb.nci.nih.qov/cancerlit. shtml
l National Cancer Institute's - clinical trials
information canceririals.nci.nih.gov
m. Department of Health and Human Services www.healthfinder.qov
Additional educational materials are is-available for cancer patients and their famifies in the
following areas:;
a. Tri-CityMG Intranet:

i. Clinical Key Micromedex-{Clinical-Referance)

.  Elsevier OnlineMesbys Patient Education (under Policies and Procedures link
on Intranet)
b. Cerner:
i Krames-Patient Education Handouts (such as Krames)
b-c. Education Pamphlets on 2 Pavilion
Document all referrals and cancer education in the Cerner AdHoc form under Education All
Topics Form -- “"Cancer/Chemo/Radiation.”

FORM(S):

1.

American Cancer Society Referral Form PPROA

EXTERNAL LINK(S}):

1.

American Cancer Society- Learn About and Find Clinical

Trials: https://www.cancer.org/treatment/treatments-and-side-effects/clinical-
trials/clinical-trials-matching-service-find-trial.html

21



PATIENT REFERRAL FORM American

3 Cancer

Society

{1

Notice io Patient

The American Cancer Soclety (ACS) offers services and information that could help you while you are dealing with your cancer. The |
information that you share on this form will be shared with the ACS so that they can contact you about the cancer information, services and
resources that you request.

The ACS cares about your privacy and will protect and use your information only in accordance with its Privacy Palicy, avaifable at
www.cancer.org. The ACS will use the information contained on this form to contact you about the services you have requested.

With your permission given below, the ACS may also use your information to contact you about other programs and services that may be of
interest to you, to invite you to events in your cormmunity, and/or to tell you about volunteer or other suppori opportunities. If you would like to
give the Society permission te contact you regarding these other opportunities, please initial here: {Patlent Initials)

If you have questions about your cancer, the ACS, its programs, services or privacy standards, or to change your contact preferences, please
| visit www.cancer.org or call 1-800-227-2345. The ACS Is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

g [ Healthcare N e |
= 0 - .
| 82 | Provider Name Tri-City Medical Center JIEESID: 1-RCWB7S
2 5 | Referral | .
~= | Contact Name: | Phone: ( ) =
= | Patlent Name:
F _:gt | {requirad)
- O
§ % Primary Address: Home Business Other
55 I ’ NS S .
v @ B o
2 ; City: State: Zip Code:
[ L
Eay
&= 8| Pimary Phone:  ( ) - Home Cell Business
5%
i =E= g 5," Alternate Phone:  ( ) - Home Cell Business
g
ERSE
(g B E| Emair Personal Business
£5% - -
_§_§ 8| Date of Birth: | Primary Language: English Spanish Other:
[} |
EE f ! |
| € £ | Race: African American/Black American Indian/Alaska Nalive Asian Hispanic/Latino White |
£ "?; Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander Two or more races Declined 1o Share Other: '
=
[
a =3
3 Gender: Female Male
w | Date of Diagnosis: Type of Cancer: Recurrence
W i AL =
D
& | Insurance: Medicaid Medicare Medicare + Medicaid Medicare + Private
i B8 |
|- Military Private Uninsured Declined to Share
Personal Health Manager Requested English Spanish Other Language:
(Kit to organize your cancer and treatment information)
Best Time to Cali: AM PM OK to leave a message: Y N
Transportation to cancer treatment First Date Needed: Time AM PM
5 Lodging during cancer treatment First Dale Needed:
2 T i = ADD 5 = ERLENR-ERIT : LR REAES
-]
2 One-on-one breast cancer support Treaiment Type; Early Support Lumpectomy Masteclomy
| 2 i
% (Reach to Recovery) Chemotherapy Radiation Advanced |
H &g -
&
e Classes to enhance appearance & self-esteem during treatment Skin Tone: Dark Extra Dark
{Look Good Feel Better) Light Medium
Resources/Referrals for other needs: ' Wig or head-coverings
Comments/Other information you would like us to know:
_Heal;h;re Provider Instructions: Th-e- Notiéu above regarding American Cancer éocieiy‘s use of information must;:; sh-ared wi-lh t.he patienTprior fo subm !ting
this form to the American Cancer Society. ACS will rely on Heailth Care Provider's submission of any Patient Referral Form as evidence that this Notice has
been communicated to patient. Once completed, please fax form to 877-428-2862 or Email form to 85BCREF@CANCER.ORG

I_ PPROA _J

22



Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services

‘[ PROCEDURE: DISPOSAL OF CHEMOTHERAPY WASTE

I Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibility and management of proper disposal of
chemotherapy waste

| Supportive Data: Oncology Nursing Society's Chemotherapy and Biotherapy Guidelines and
Recommendations for Practice *" Edition 2014

Equipment: Chemotherapy Safe Personal Protective equipment

Puncture —proof container labeled “chemotherapy” container
Gloves specified for use with chemotherapy agents
Large yellow bag marked “Chemotherapy waste"
Gown specified for use with Chemotherapy Agents

| A, PROCEDURE;

1.
2.
3.

Place puncture-proof chemotherapy container and large yellow chemotherapy waste plastic
bags marked “Chemotherapy Waste" in patient's room upon initiating chemotherapy treatment.
Always use chemotherapy safe personal protective equipment when handling chemotherapy
waste.

Place any disposable cytoxic contaminated materials into a yellow chemotherapy waste plastic
bag. Use puncture proof chemotherapy waste containers for sharps, breakable items, and items
that are saturated with chemotherapy or chemotherapy contaminated body fluids.

Place contaminated Intravenous (IV} tubing, IV bags, and all non-sharp materials in the large
yellow plastic bag marked “Chemotherapy Waste:" after striking out any patient information
on the label or tubing with a black permanent marker.

Tie off large yellow chemotherapy waste bag carefully gathering top portion of bag with one
hand and slowly pull downward on gathered portion until internal air in bag resists further pulling
down. Place yellow chemotherapy waste bag in puncture proof container labeled
“Chemotherapy Waste.”

Upen-completion-of-treatment; P-place puncture-proof chemotherapy container in the chemo
waste room when no longer in use or container is 2/3 full. ¥-tho-containerisless-than-2/3

a. For inpatient areas without a chemo waste room, contact Environmental Services (EVS)
for removal.

Completely close the lid on the chemotherapy puncture proof waste containers when the

sentaineris-they are 2/3 full or if a potential risk is perceived. Document on top of the puncture

proof container “full” with the date ree

itbefore placing it in the chemo waste room or contacting EVS for removal.

Notify environmental services when chemotherapy puncture-proof waste containers are full.

Chemotherapy containers must be removed from the chemo waste room within 24 hours.

4+a. Outpatient Infusion Center staff shall notify currently contracted waste
management provider to pick-up chemotherapy waste containers.

I Dapartment
ReaviewPatient
Care Sarvices
Contant
Expert

Clinical
Policles &
Procedures
Committes

Profassional
Affairs
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committea

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committee

Nurse
Executive
Commiittee

Board of
Directors

Division of

Oncology Administration

6/03; 11111,
05116

2112, 11715,
nia

07116, 0317,
03119

1712, 1015,

12111, 08/15,
6/16 05119

616 06119

09/15, 7116 212, 1215

23



9
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

ELECTROCAUTERY MACHINE SETUP, USE AND SAFETY

| | Purpose:

To outline nursing responsibilities in the set-up and safe operation of the electrocautery
machine.

Equipment:

Electrocautery machine
—Adult dispersive electrode (grounding pad)

-Safety holster

Cautery pencil (hand aetivitiesactivated) and bladeaccessory tip(s)
Foot pedal — Monopolar

Foot pedal — Bipolar

Scratch pad

A. PROCEDURE:

| 1. The electro surgery unit (ESU), dispersive electrode, and active electrode selected for use shall
meet the following performance and safety criteria:
| a. Use according to manufacturer's weitten-instrustiensinstructions for use (IFU).

b. Design shall minimize unintentional activation.

c. Cord shall be of adequate length and flexibility.

d. The machine shall be inspected by the surgical/procedural team before each use.

e, The ESU shall be appropriately grounded for each use.

f. The ESU and all reusable parts shall be cleaned according to manufacturer's weitten
hstrestionsIFIU.

Personnel shall check the entire circuit if higher than normal power settings are

requested during the surgical procedure.

h. Each ESU shall be assigned an identification number and shall have routine scheduled
preventive maintenance performed, per Engineering FGMGC pPolicy: Preventive
MaintanenseMaintenance. Ensure the electrocautery machine has a current Bio-
Medical Engineering Preventative Maintenance (PM) sticker.

i Position the machine near sterile field. The machine, -asd-cord, and accessories shall
be kept away from fluids and protected from spills.

i Containers of liquids should not be placed on energy-generating devices,
as liquids may enter the device and cause unintentional activation, device
failure, or an electrical hazard,

il Foot pedal accessories should be encased in a fluid-resistant cover when
there is potential for fluid spills.

2, Personnel shall demonstrate competency with the ESU prior to use:

a. Personnel shall be instructed in the proper operation, care and handling of the ESU
before use.

b. The device manufacturer's manual-ef-operating-instructionsIFU shall be readily available
to the-users.

3. Follow fire safety precautions while using an ESU, per Patient Care Services (PCS)
procedure Fire Prevention and Management in Invasive Procedure Areas.

34, The ESEESU, active electrode, and dispersive electrode shall be used in a manner that reduces
the potential for injury, including the following safety measures:

a. Do not use in the presence of flammable agents (alcohol-based prep solutions and
tincture-basedother flammable agents must be allowed sufficient time to dry and fumes
to dissipate before draping and/or use of an ESU).

mm;t Shgicyl Nursaing 0
Policles & perating | Pharmacy & Medica? Professional Board of
Care Services Procatiires Exacutive Room Thetapeutics | Executlve | Administration Affalrs Directors
CEG;I::::t Committes CouncliCommittee | Committea | Commities | Committes Committee
LE 3111, 1143, 09118, 1113, 214, :
e e R A T e e 7

24



Patient Care Services Prosedare-Manual
Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedure

Page Z of 4

4:5.

5:6.

£7.

b.
c.
d.

e.

gf.

.
k.

Use caution during head and neck surgery when using an active electrode in the
presence of combustible anesthetic gases.

Test safety features (i.e., lights, activation sounds) before each use.

Check the cord, plug and footswitch for integrity before each use.

Verbally confirm the power settings with the operator before activation, and operate at
the lowest power settings possible to achieve the desired surgical effect.

Plug the ESU into an isolated electrical circuit.

Do not place other electrical equipment on top of or immediately next to the ESU. Allow

space between the ESU and other electrical equipment, to avoid interference and

potential inadvertent activation of the machines.

Sponges used near the active electrode tip should be moist to prevent unintentional

ignition.

Electrosurgery should not be used in the presence of gastrointestinal gases.

Electrosurgery should not be used in an oxygen-enriched environment.

i. The lowest possible oxygen concentrations that provide adequate patient
oxygenation should be used.

ii. Surgical drapes should be arranged to minimize the build-up of oxidizers under
the drape.

iii. The active electrode should be used as far from the oxygen source as possible.

Select and use a dispersive electrode (i.e., grounding pad){dispersive-elestrode)-appropriate
te—pahent—s—srze accordlng to manufacturer s IFU.

Never cut pad to f t or alter groundrng pad in any way

Never use grounding pad when only bipolar cautery is being used.

Open grounding pad package as close to the time of use as possible and confirm
the manufacturer’s expiration date has not passed. The longer the pad package is
open, the greater the potential for drying of the dispersive electrode's adhesive
and conductive gel.

Select grounding pad site.

a.
b.

c.

d.

ef.

Place the grounding pad after the patient is in the final position for surgery/procedure.

Ensure the grounding pad site is clean and dry, over a large, well-perfused muscle

mass, intact skin, and as close to the operative site as possible.

Ensure grounding pad maintains uniform contact with the patient's body throughout the

procedure.

Metal jewelry (including body piercings, subdermal implants, and transdermal or

microdermal implants) that is between the active and dispersive electrode should be

removed,

Place the grounding pad away from a warming device whenever possible.

AVOID the following areas when selecting a site for grounding pad placement:

i. Over Eexcessively hairy areas.

i, Over Searscar tissues

ii. Over metal implants

iv. Over Bbony prominences-sush-as-hip-er-knee-bene: and potential pressure
points

=v.  Over skin folds

wvi. Wet areas {pooled fluids)

vivii. Areas distal to fourniquets

viizviii. Over tattoos, which may contain metallic dyes-

The following corrective measures shall be performed for poor contact of a single use electrode:

ii-b.

Apply a new grounding pad-
Remove ail, lotion, maisture; or prep solution:

25



Patient Care Services Rrocedura-Manual
Electrocautery Machine Setup Procadura

Page 3of 4

6:9.

+10.

&11.

812.

1613.
H-14.

1215,

fi=c. Remove excessive hair:

id. Change sites

v-e. Never use tape to hold the single-use dispersive electrode in place.

v-f.  If the patient is repositioned intraoperatively, the nurse should verify that the dispersive
electrode is in full contact with the patient’s skin.

If two ESU’s will be used simultaneously during a procedure, a dispersive electrode

should be used for each ESU.

a. The dispersive electrodes should be placed as close as possible to the surgical
site.

b. The dispersive electrodes should not overlap.

c. The dispersive electrodes should be placed equidistant from the surgical site

when it is a single site.
Plug grounding pad into cautery machine and turn on machine, per manufacturer’s IFU.

a. Adjust the volume to ensure audible alerts when the cautery is in use.

b. Ensure connections are intact, clean, and make effective contact with the elestro-surgery
maehineESU.

The active electrode shall:

a. Fasten directly in the ESU in a stress-resistant receptacle (adapters shall be

manufacturer approved and not compromise safety features)

Be inspected on the field for damage prior to use.

Be inspected in a clean, dry, well-insulated safety holster when not in use, and used

according to manufacturer's writter-instructionsIFU.

Be impervious to fluids.

Be disconnected from the ESU if allowed to drop below the sterile field.

Have a tip that is secure and easy to clean, and the tip shall never be altered, including

cut, bent, or used with an insulating sheath made from inappropriate materials (i.e.,

rubber catheters).

g. Be cleaned whenever there is visible eschar, which impedes the desired current flow,
causing the entire unit to function less effectively and serving as a fuel source for fire.

The ESU shall be used with foot pedal or hand-control forceps according to manufacturer's

wiitep-nekustonsiFU.

It an active monopolar electrode is being used in a fluid-filled cavity, the fluid used should be an

electrically inert, near isotonic solution (i.e., sorbitol), unless the equipment manufacturer's

written directions for use instruct otherwise.

Set ESU with desired power settings.

Adjust settings per physician preference.

a. Refer to manufacturer's writter-nstrustionsIFU for adjusting

Energy-generating device cords should be secured to the sterile drapes with a plastic or

other non-conductive, non-piercing device, in a manner which does not crush or damage

the cord. Do not secure ESU cords to drapes with a metal instrument.-Orly-use-plastic-clamps

oo

~oa

16.

Be aware of potential patient safety hazards associated with implanted electronic device
(IED) (i.e., pacemaker, implantable cardioverter defibrillator [ICD], implantable hearing
devices, implantable infusion pumps, deep brain, vagal nerve, or spinal cord stimulator)
and take precautions to protect the patient from injury:
a. Patients with pacemakers shall have continuous electrocardiogram (ECG)
monitoring when an ESU is being used.
14-b. Additional precautions for patients with pacemakers include, but are not limited to:
a-i. Make the distance between the active and dispersive electrode as short as
possible, and place both as far from the pacemaker as possible.
b-ii.  Ensure that the current path from the surgical site to the dispersive electrode
does not pass through the vicinity of the heart.

26



Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedura

Page dof 4

&iii. Keep all ESU cords away from the pacemaker and the leads.

div. Have a defibrillator available.

e:v.  Check with the pacemaker's manufacturer regarding its function during the use of
an ESU

the&r—EGGmeFHtered—eenhmeuslyqf-the-ESU—wm-beasedManage ICD's accordlng to

manufacturer’s IFU and Surgical Servnces Policy: Patlents with AICD Implant

17.  After completion of the case, turn off the ESU, dispose of single use items appropriately, clean
all reusable parts to the ESU, inspect accessories and parts for damage, function and
cleanliness, and carefully remove the dispersive electerode pad from the patient by peeling it
back slowly.

18.  Documentation shait include:

000 oD

Type of ESU

ESU identification number

ESU settings {minimum and maximum ranges)

Location of dispersive electrode

Description of skin at dispersive electrode site pre- and post- procedure
Lot number of dispersive electrode

19. If injury occurs related to the ESU, the event must be reported to the manufacturer and/or the
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to comply with the Safe Medical Devices Act (refer to
Administrative Policy:-#8618-204; “Equipment/ Medical Device Reporting Sequester - 201

[I quEl 4d'4§¢=as|iiﬁg").

a. Immediately remove the ESU from service.

b. Send the ESU, active and dispersive electrodes, and their packaging to Biomedical
Engineering Department.

(F Enter a work order.

d. Complete an incident report, inciuding the ESU identification number and event

information.

B. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Administrative District Operations Policy: Equipment Medical Device Reporting
Sequester 8610-201
2. Engineering Policy: Preventive Maintenance

B-C. REFERENCE(S):

- Conner, R. (2018).

Gundellnes for Peﬂoperatlve Practice, 2018 Edition. Denver, CO: Association of

PeriOperative Registered Nurses.

27



e Sewiced' DELETE: Staff will refer to
UL 2l manufacturer instructions.

o)
(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

PROCEDURE:  END TIDAL CO, (ETCO,) MONITOR

Patient Care Clinical
Nurse Pharmacy & Medical Professional

%zr::g:f PF:Z:::::IG::S Executiva gm::::_:‘aof Therapeutics | Executive | Administration Affairs EI::;?D':;
Councli ry Committee Committee Committee

Expert Committee
06/14,

NEwos,1e | 00/Lh 9513, 0718, | 09r14, 03119 nfa 09/14, 05119 06/19 10114, wia 11114
1118




| Patient Care Services-Rrosedure-Manual
End Tidal CO; Monitor Procedure

| Page 2 of 8

& Plgsethe BEHSO . sanAla-onpatient

29



| Patient Care Services-Rrosaduma-Manusl
End Tidal CO; Monitor Frocedura
. Paga Jof 8

30



| Patient Care Services-Rrecadura-Manual
End Tidal CO; Monitor PFrocedure
. Pags5of8

31



| Patient Care Services-Prosadura-Manual
End Tidat CO; Monitor Procedure
PageGof B

32



| Palient Care Servicas-Rrocedure-Manual
End Tidal CO; Moenitor Procedure
Page 7 of 8

DELETE

Patient information guide to end tidal
carbon dioxide (EtCO2) monitoring

Alaris” products

What is this on my face and why do [ need it?

You are weaning this clear tube in your nose to monilor
your breathing and to give yoai axygen as necederl Your
healtheare provider helieves yaur need this bacause of
your conthtion or becawse the medicalion you aie gethng
can affect your ability 1o tweathe

The tube in your nose 15 attached lo a device that vall
monitor your breathing #e sure the fube is placed in
hoth nostrils at all limes. H you heat the device alanm,
tabe 2 deep bicath, § s not uvteomingn o hear more
alarnns vhile you are shepmg because your breathing
ts more relaxed. Think of the alarms as an alatm cinck
reminding you to take a deep breath,

Carefusion
%an Dieqgo, CA

carefusion.com @ Ca rEFUSion

©1C10 Luralubun Coypradatizt o tier GF it Subudeatidn S eghls o aed Alars by Uademank 3¢
terpatgted Eraddamdh of ¢ atebusich Catparabion of cne ul it subudisrias 1 1%5 (DG 10

33



| Patient Care Services-Rrocedure-Marual
End Tidal CO, Menitor Procedure
Page 8of 8

DELETE

Guia de infomacion sobre el monitor
de didéxido de carbono respiratorio
final (EtCO,)

Productos Alaris

¢Qué eslo que tengo en la cara y por qué lo
necesito?

Ustert estd usandas este tubo transpatente a i de
contiolar su respiracion y de proparcionarle el axigenn
que necesita. Su médico consirdera jjue lo necesita a causa
ile su afeccidn, o bien debide a que la medicacidn gue
1ecibe puede afectar su capoadad respiratona

Fl tubo que tiene en la nanz £s1d conectado a un
dispotitivo que contratard st respithodn, Asegurese

de que el luho estd colocado en las dos fosas nasales
todo el nempo. Sy oye la alarma del disposiive, respire
profundo, Ls noimal oir méas alarmas mientras esté
dunmiendo, ya que su respiracién es mas relajada Piense
que [as alaimas son comp una alanna de reloj gque e
recuaida que debe spitar profunddamente

CareFusion
San [ioga, CA

carefusion.com @ Ca I‘eFUSion

L1 Caslusun L ooporation o wna i sus jubsialianas. Tod s bat derethod reua s adss, ATais ¢4 una
matia regiitadd de Larefuidan Larp 0 und dg Sul bt LU (ORI

34



/)
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 03/09 SUBJECT: Family Presence During
Resuscitation
REVISION DATE: 01/12 T A =

Department-Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval-Date{s): 04/1603/19
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/1604/19
Nurseing- Executive Ceuncil-Committee Approval: 05/1604/19

Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/4605/19
Administration Approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval; 8716 nia
Board of Directors Approval: 0716

A. DEFINITIONS:

1. Family Presence: The presence of family in the patient care area in a location that affords visual
or physical contact with the patient during resuscitation events.

2. Resuscitation: A sequence of events, which are initiated to sustain life or prevent further
deterioration of the patient's condition.

3. Family: A relative of the patient or any significant other with whom the patient shares an

established relationship.
4, Family Support Person: Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) employees including:
Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)
Staff Registered Nurse (RN)
Chaplain
Social Worker
Administrative Supervisor or other designee who is assigned to the family of a patient
during a resuscitation event and assumes no direct care responsibilities for the patient.
During day shift hours the Ffamily Ssupport Rperson role will be fulfilled by a chaplain or
social worker, or if unavailable, the ANM or his/her designee. During night shift hours the
Family-Suppert-Rersenfamily support person role will be fulfilled by the Administrative
Supervisor, ANM, or his/her designee.

Paocow

B. PURPOSE:
1. To assure patient and families are provided care consistent with the philosophy of
patient/family-centered care and established emergency care standards.
a. Supporiive data:

i. The family is a constant in the patient's life. Family participation and involvement
in the patient’s health care promotes collaborative relationships among the
patient, family and health care professionals. The strengths and coping strategies
of the family are supported and incorporated into the care of the patient.

C. POLICY:
1. Patient & Family Assessment
a. Family members shall be assessed by the primary Registered Nurse (RN) or designee

for the appropriate levels of coping, desires and needs.

35



Patient Care Services
| Family Presence During Resuscitation Policy

Page 2 of 3

e.

f.

i. In addition, family members should demonstrate the absence of combative or
threatening behavior, extreme emotional volatility, and behaviors consistent with
an altered mental status related to drugs or alcohol.

1) Family members demonstrating such behavior are not candidates for
family presence.

ii. Children must have an adult caregiver present to be allowed at the bedside.

Cultural customs shall be considered and assessed. Healthcare providers shall maintain

an awareness of cultural variations and be sensitive to these factors and family needs.

Decision to initiate family presence is dependent upon criteria consisting of three

components:

i Patient's desire to have family with them

ii. Family's desire to be present

iii. Agreement of the direct care providers

Family members who do not wish to participate shall be supported in their decision

without judgment and the family support person shall remain with them.

When a resuscitation event is announced a Efamily $Ssupport Rperson shall be

determined based on available staff.

The family support person shall identify the primary RN and ask if the family can be

present.

Preparation/Participation of Family Presence

a.

The family support person shall explain the patient’s appearance, treatments and
equipment used in layman’s language and shall prepare the family for entering the
patient's room, inciuding:

i. Communicating that the patient is the priority.

ii. Explaining how many family members may enter the room safely, where they
may stand initially, when they shall be able to move to the bedside and what not
to touch to prevent injury.

iii. Explaining and adhering to appropriate infection control measures if the patient is
in isolation or contact precautions.

iv. Preparing family members for the sights and sounds of resuscitation.

V. Clearly informing the family of the status of their loved one at all times,

vi. Explaining why the family may be asked to step out of the room and when they
can leave the room.

vii. Informing the health care providers of the presence of the family.

viii.  Remaining with the family at all times during the resuscitation.

iX. Escorting the family from the bedside and/or out of the room if deemed

necessary by the health care providers.

Post-Code Follow-Up

a.

Immediately following the resuscitation event, the Efamily Ssupport Pperson shall meet

with and debrief the family regarding circumstances of the resuscitation event and the

outcome.

If the Ppatient survives resuscitation efforts with good prognosis

i. Provide patient/family orientation to the Intensive Care Unit (ICU)

ii. Explain Rprocedures/test fully explained and update all parties updated per
primary care RN/Primary physician on an on-going basis.

il Transfer to ICU

If the Rpatient survives with poor prognosis

i. Discussion shall be initiated with family regarding comfort measures, hospice,

efc.
1) Hospitality cart ordered for family
2) Chaplain Services as appropriate

3) Open Visitation
ii. Life sharing referral initiated
If the Ppatient Expires

36



Patient Care Services
| Family Presence During Resuscitation Policy
Page 3 of 3

B-E.

i Explain end of Life-life process explained to family per primary care RN/ancillary
staff (i.e., Chaplain, Social Worker, and Administrative Supervisor). See Patient
Care Services Policy: End of Life (Comfort Care)

ii. Notify Life-Sharing rnetified of expiration.

ii. Allow Efamily-allewed private time in room.

= Complete Rrequired documentation. -cempleted—patient-represontative-phens
arabergivarwhon-nesossans
V. Greving-pamphlet-offered-Offer dealing with grief information to family.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Patient Care Services Policy: End of Life (Comfort Care)

REFERENCE(S):

1.

American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN). (2016). Practice alert: Family Presence
During Resuscitation and Invasive Procedures. Retrieved May 9,2016, from
http://www.aacn.org/wd/practice/docs/practicealerts/family-presence-during-resusitation-and-
invasive-procedures-pa-2015.pdf

Davidson, J. E., Powers, K. S., Hedayat, K. M., Tieszen, M., Kon, A. A., Shepard, E., et al.
(2007). Clinical practice guidelines for support of the family in the patient-centered intensive
care unit. American College of Critical Care Medicine Task Force 2004-2005. Critical Care
Medicine, 35(2), 605-622.

Emergency Nurses Association (2007). Presenting the Option for Family Presence (3™ Edition).

Guzzetta, C. E., Clark, A. P., & Halm, M. A. (2008). Family presence facilitation. In E. Ackley, G.

Ladwid, B. A. Swan, & S. Tucker (Eds.), Evidence-based nursing care guidelines. Philadelphia:
Elsevier.

Mian, P., Warchal, S., Whitney, S., Fitzmaurice, J., & Tancredi, D. (2007). Impact of a
multifaceted intervention on nurses’ and physicians’ behaviors toward family presence during
resuscitation. Critical Care Nurse, 27(1), 52-61.

Oczkowski, S.J.W., Mazzetti, |., Cupido, C., Fox-Robichaud, A. E. {July/August 2015). Family
Presence During Resuscitation: A Canadian Critical Care Society Position Paper. Canadian
Respiratory Journal, 22(4), 201-205.

Porter, J. E., Cooper, S. J., Sellick, K. {2014). Family Presence During Resuscitation (FPDR):
Perceived Benefits, Barriers and Enablers to implementation and Practice. International
Emergency Nursing, 22(2), 69-74.

Beesley, S.J., Hopkins, R. O., Francis, L., Chapman, D., Johnson, N., & Brown, S. M. (April
2016). Let Them In: Family Presence During Intensive Care Unit Procedures. American
Thoracic Society.

37



2
(C"» Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-ROLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 10/07 SUBJECT: Growth Chart Documentation for
Pediatrics, Adolescents, and
Neonates

| REVISION DATE(S): 10/10, 01/11 Polle s I e BRI

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 08/17

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 08/1444/1801/19

Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 0844401/19

Department of Pediatrics Approval: 4+4H4404/19

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 14/4405/19

Administration Approval: 06/19

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0415 nia

Board of Directors Approval: 01115

A PURPOSE:

1.

Monitoring of growth (weight; and length/height-and head circumference-{KEER}} of neonates,
infants, pediatric, and adolescent patients {(up to twenty-one [21] years of age) is necessary to
evaluate nutrition status, growth, and appropriateness of nutrition intake.

B. POLICY:

1.

Nursing shall document (plot} weight and height/length data on predetermined growth charts for
all neonate, infant, pediatric, and adolescent patients.
a. Weight and height/length data shall be plotted on admission and as indicated.
b. Head circumference for infants, neonates, and children less than three years of age,
shall be plotted on admission.
I, Head circumference shall be monitored after admission per physician/Allied
Health Professional (AHP) order.
Growth Charts used for specific age groups are as follows per Center for Disease (CDC)
recommendations and shall be added to the medical record:
a. Term [nfant boys (birth to twenty-four [2436] months): (Ferm-#6200-1020)
i. Length—for-Age and Weight—for-Age, 3 - 97" Percentiles
ii. Head circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length, 3 — 97™ Percentiles
b. Term Infant girls (birth to twenty-four [24368] months): {Form#6200-1018)
i. Length—for-Age and Weight—for-Age, 3 - 97" Percentiles
ii. Head circumference-for-age and Weight-for—length, 3 — 97" Percentiles
c. Children and adolescent boys (two [2] to twenty-one [21] years): {Form-#6280-1021)
i. Stature-for-Age and Weight-for-Age, 3 — 97" Percentiles
. Body Mass Index (BMi)-for-Age, 3 - 97™ Percentiles
ii. Cerner: Weight by age percentile for boys aged two (2) — twenty (20) years
iv. Cerner: Stature by age percentile for boys aged two (2) - twenty (20) years
d. Children and adolescent girls (two (2) to twenty-one [21] years): (Form-#6200-1040)
i, Stature—for-Age and Weight-for-Age, 3 - 97™ Percentiles
i. BMI-for-Age, 3 — 97" Percentiles
i, Cerner: Weight by age percentile for girls aged two (2) — twenty (20) years
iv. Cerner: Stature by age percentile for girls aged two (2) - twenty (20) years

v-e,  Fenton Fetal-Infant Growth Chart for Preterm Infants (Fenton Growth Chart Form

#6070-1015)

38



[ A-C.

Patient Care Service #
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy
Page 2 of 14

i Infant boys (Twenty two [22] weeks to fifty [50] weeks - Gestational age
(weeks)
1) Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age, 10 - 97" Percentiles
¥:2) Head circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length, 3 — 97"
Percentiles
iii. Infant girls (Twenty two [22] weeks to fifty [50] weeks - Gestational age
{weeks)
1) Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age, 10 — 97" Percentiles
vii2) Head circumference-for-age and Weight-for-length, 3 - 97"
Percentiles
Infant (birth-to thiry-six (37} Weeks)
i j * porsentiles
i . . th .
b} I.Iead G."GH""E'E"EE. for—#\ge-and :wmght Iel:angth; L
L"'a"t gluls ‘5" ch EE:I'" ty El'i:ufa.i ]I UIN Bgeks’u 497" p ”
i H ! ci f § I Weight—f | "’3 glmp ¢l

FORM(S):

1.

> o

N,

2 to 20 Years: Boys Stature-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Boys Body Mass
Index-for-Age Percentiles 6290-1021 - Sample

2 to 20 Years: Girls Stature-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Girls Body Mass
Index-for-Age Percentiles 6290-1019 - Sample

Birth to 36 Months: Boys Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Boys Head
Circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length Percentiles 6290-1020 - Sample

Birth to 36 Months: Girls Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Girls Head
Circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length Percentiles 6290-1018 - Sample

Fenton Growth Chart 6070-1015 — Sample

Fenton Preterm Growth Chart — Boys — Sample

Fenton Preterm Growth Chart — Girls ~ Sample

Classification of Newborns — Based on Maturity and Intrauterine Growth - Sample

REFERENCE(S):

1.
2.

American Academy of Pediatrics and The American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists. (2012). Guidelines for Perinatal Care (7th ed.).

Gestational Charts and Growth Charts. (2015). Retrieved Jan 20, 2015, from Meadjohnson:
http://www.meadjohnson.com/pediatrics/us-en/nurse-connections/helping-moms-and-
babies/gestational-growth-charts

Simpson, K. R., & Creehan, P. A. (2014). Perinatal Nursing (4th ed.). N.p.: Lippincott Williams &
Wilkins.

39



Patient Care Service }

Growth Chart Documentation for Pedlatrics, Adolescents and Neconates Policy

Page 3 of 14

2 to 20 Years: Boys Stature-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Boys Body Mass Index-for-
Age Percentiles #6290-1021 - Sample

(T4 138 ct0c () O O O

2 to 20 years: Boys NAME
Stature-for-age and Welght-for-age percentiles RECORD #

12 13 14 15 168 17 18 19 20

LI L L WY LAY

Mothers St . Faihor's Bteture =) .
Dato e Weight T -| =3 AGE ‘(YEARS)_‘ ESESE L
== I —— LE 1904—

=5 == S Pt ¥ L B

o e P e :/__

par = 'ﬁ“'?"180:--
ZESSRSE=sT=m Y

1
[]
1
]
}
‘N
l!

I

N
i
)
i

L
!
8

“To Calcuixtn BAU: Waight (kg) + Stnure (o) + Staturs (om) 2 10,000 A

|

1

S

th
MUC-AP=to

‘ot Weigh (i) + Statura (in) + Btatuwrs () x 703 A=A F,,_?_Zg'_saj
In Temi=—=3a=4=—5—08=57 9101 1z A7 A == =£165 -
> i IE 3=r10311 AT A b e <B4
- 3160 ‘ S A S AT 1809 |
'82::;'-5"5 T A | AT 155:_82“
s -4 - 7 7. _: -
_m rd — F o
A === : g e T 1503~
s Sy =S SRS mEHPArS 8715 : ==
FS6d——f S e T ST e
o 140 A Zra 1055230+
-54 ,' ll - 4l r Y, 1 :
ol e Z 7 A A A e A 0T 10042201
%130 A LA e e 854210

o

™
N
NI TN

1

sfcjtdetprgfegyst
M SEAEREEAR]

% =
035 LA F
a8 == Y '; 5= S =A ] 150
- 120 A A 7 853
4815t (TA APATaY, ==k AT a0 801
I g b E : = —B01-
e S e LA o hiof
1107 AL T o —~ — 75%:
AR eSS aas 7ok 0]
y s g_ AS=E A7 = — = : _:70::150_
ESss EEvERF SR esis cov g b
P £ i) e e F=|=E ,z‘g_:__._.::.‘ltw- 1
e SEEESEE e P A e e 00 H130] @
F = 3 = g 7 ez‘j" H
4 : 7 7= = 564120
= fens ¥ 7't = = T
=== L= s T e 3
== AL A A —F
RS ECEEEEEr A0 MBS e ?arf A —k
==t £ z 403
e ] P 1 = = i =
SRR i £
—=}- - Pt ot o ouliet : —
" BB EEEF A e ap e o e : : £704
E 8 Sl ) i als o i r o ﬂ.i
1 A e A i RS S =601
e =B ';zf,“,:: = o, ! -525;3_50.
H Lo E2 e = : 20F 40
T | e 1 [ 15"4‘J
304 =4 = - s S ot it o o 35301
L =10 b AGE (YEARS 10+
16~} kg == == \GE (YEARS)=— : RS

-

2 3 4 58 6 7 8 10 1% 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Putikativd My 30, 2000 {modited 11/2140). ,'”'
EOURCTT: Daveloped by the Naiorz] Certar for Hea!th Stalistics in ooftaboraion with lbé
rmmummwmmmm. v

h

BAFER - HEALTHIER-PEDPLE™

Affx Patient Lebal

@9 Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vistn Woy + Oooonside + CA « 62058
2 TO 20 YEARS: BOYS

l"llﬂllw““ STATURE-FOR-AGE AND
i 1207}

WEIGHT-FOR-AGE PERCENTILES




Palient Care Service i
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy
Page 4 of 14

®|.-|-:1:m|.co O

2 to 20 years: Boys

Body mass Index-for-age percentiles RECORD # i
Data Age Weight | Stature BMl* Commenta 4 )
[ I -
, e e e == s I
] e o o -
+ :15__
i 34—
: o e =
s 33|
A 32—
= s
SV 31—
-] T e e
l—-——| e t:-;:/ a0 —
T Calculala BMI: Weight (kg) + Biaturs o) + Staiwre fem) x 10,000 b | sE
of Waight {ib) + Statura (in) + Swture {in) x 703 e e Pl 29—
e =l
1 [ | _!_ o fomd J-d--TJ -1 -4 /_:_' ] 1.
- BMI == —=r= _ o T e 28—
T = S T
— 27 : - = /4—27—
= e == == P =l
_26 | . oo 'L i ol t - 1' : 1 —- [ /»——.—.— : 26_'
YR E e ZCERETERS. 25—
£ AR E A SR
— 24 1+ 3 — ._‘_' - ¥ /r = 3 = - 7~ = 24—
T e R e B e B T A ]
= = =7 = — 23
_n P —— } o ¥ i i v 4 ."“" /..’ P o} 22_
e 41 7 [ AT )z IR SN E
i | R S S e o s B 4 8 g e ek
e S CSEETr«UETAEE
Faorer=r B i s P I o e g ) o o
_20 . .1'.___’:;. e— : ;.—./-1 r‘_/ : : - 20_
s &n{— S AL e H..jlrf.' ;;10.4 19—
T 717 PLEEsCmEss e Es
— 18 g = = —A— = ey "'. = 1 Iff ’f 18—
| 17 NI L 1 1 . o 0 e ARV
ESSNEmEEEEZaAEREP A
— 18 gt i i pae + $ + > 18—
i i o P ot e e T ‘i P [ et B 6 N I O P 6 15
] g Bt B 1 | e 2 = . T
I‘J\j‘\_,ﬁ}_ = _,:'_']}’ B = .i : _{. ] il by a i. t
- 14 —r =t , 14—
A = e e == : == ===t 13
. + T BE i T RN E
ENRSESES s S AR AR e e e 12
1 34 % B T 3 . E_ +
kgfm' [T T T AGE (YEARS) e | keim
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 18 18 17 18 19 20

Pubahad May 30, 2000 {modited 10/18/00%
SOURCE: Develaped by the Nalonal Center for Heefth Exatistics in celisboration with
4 Fadona) Certer for Chronic Dissase Pravention and Health Promation (2000).

e Qg

Fi il oot

L:gu

S

AAFEN s WEALTHIZEN PROPLE™

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vism Way » Oceenside « CA « 92056

2-20 YEARS: BOYS

i FOR-
M oo/

{Aey 1.7

Alfix Patient Lebel

41



Patient Care Service
Growth Chart Documentaltion for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neanatas Policy
Page 5 of 14

2 to 20 Years: Girls Stature-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Girls Body Mass Index-for-Age
Percentiles #6290-1019 - Sample

@-!u I | 38 loec O O O O

2 to 20 years: Girls NAME
Stature-for-age and Walght-for-age parcantilas RECORD #

12 13 14 15 18 17 IB 19 20

MotersSown . Fomsrsfumee . [t ems-In
Date A Wi Bmwe | BMr | --—AGEWS)

— —=3180-

1853

“To Calcuiste BME: Weight (k) + Siature cm) » Stature (o) x 10,000/ —|=T o 1
or Weight (ib) - Btature (] + Stehure (n) 2 703 [ A S Sohhre

g

L

o
mac-HA»~®

E=FEL B3 Ed Bl Ga B EX(Eil by, % Pa EE ) =5 *185{64
P S R fn I e A e iy Bl [ e g Sy ey o iy 3

5 160 = .l/; FE == ‘ T 160._82_

Jon LIS B D S1Y B0 D e e ey B

5 [goiis S B P AP e e e S SR B A U

T 1160 = e . —3"150+

; R Eys S A 5 SH ==
YT e i ! ) i o e ) B IS P s B o IREEEEE o e B

u 563 i t s ¥ - E

F140 AT : 105%230+

™ A, =E % .

E 135 A A e 10032201
“52':130 B, S o et e 2 S R e e e e e e 56_5'-210'
_50:;_0_.: J‘ ,I‘.,/_./ o ‘f—'t :f,{ ;' =1 =l =]={={== 1==F :_'200

rled—i— EAip gy * oy - e g gy g ‘57_—90'-
_4,87_1?0 =] e 1_}_..‘ = "',ll.i—— S L S P ) ey pat o g e o o gt g5 £190 -
48575 Sl AA A AT AT S D S e EEESEEY LY

Py AL S o e 4 : £170-
TTE0 " :7;';1 3 == =t =70 _=16°
42108 BE CLATL 8 A . 7oL
e e e el

‘F100 e = 555‘40 E

o 4’ 5 === 2 vy J ey fte gy gy pand G i = = = - I §
‘38_,:95“ [5’ ATy, -_.;... == .-.—f.. T A= _4_,r"‘ o |3 '-:,_ T 60+ 1

I WA e ¥ S e e b s F 130 6
-38-1= (fpd drw 1 y o o __——"'” : " H
_u:;gq e s e e e EErre ikl
i AL = L 501110
Land —=1//~ / I 4 £ P g e o D = F
323750 1/ er S et 100:
_ac—'_........._— =zl f 22| ‘1_/ i :f.w;:-;.,]‘;--—‘l_:dm.' o) fymg S et b ._'=90‘
E e e ! LA ma 7 o e Ay 40E
TR A= i =+ g0l
%65235 S S S T i i i i S e i e ::
L b ey Pt i .'.“::::"‘*”"'_:‘-—_,.__. gt ft T o ool Vi ¥ o 5 g et [t S (e Sl Bl = £1

‘.Ev _6027.'30 =l 1’:‘.1 r.):',r.,_ ST :2._. — f = __-;. ».-m_.aofm

B PP ST ) B o P Pt o 0 g Szt o, 18 — —t= E 1

g I e o EE P s 8 2 3 P ; S EE Ew sad P

c] B £ T

perTi=— o i T N ! o S PR i B ot ! a0k

H Laoi=—1= = == 40

T | i 15t = = = 15E
-309=12 o E R R S RN S R e N Lo 80
. 3=10 ! 10F ]

[EErEE===a : == AGE(V ARS) e e e R £ IS

2 83 4 58 8 7 8 8 10 11 121314151817181920

Publishud May 30, 2000 {modified 11/24/007. ,;,Z'i'
sounu. Mnummummhﬂmm
#he Natona! Cartier for Chrorvo Disense Prevention ared Haslth Promedion (2000).

(@) Tri-Gity Medical Center

4002 Vigta Way + Oceanside + CA » 92056

2 TO 20 YEARS: GIRLS

(IVAEAHNGR STATURE-FOR-AGE AND
62901014

WEIGHT-FOR-AGE PERCENTILES

BAPER - HEALTHIRR: PRarLE*
Affix Patert Label

v 1507

42



Patient Care Service:
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonales Policy
Page 6 of 14

@luus&‘u.ao O O O

2 to 20 years: Glrls NAME oy i
Body mass index-for-age percentiles RECORD # ____ =
Date Age Weight | Staturo BMI Comments il b o
== ' = BMI—
ISR EE S
= _..1__ = ’ 4 34
=
-3 = Tt by 33_
= T T
== —— 32—
T = = — 81—
*To Caloulsts BMI; Woight (g} + Statura {cm) « Siature {cmj x 10,000 BEEESE! "
of Weight (i) + Blaturg (i} + Staruro Jn) x 703 - T 30—
+ ~+ o e ey Pl el e QA 7 8 0 e el
== e 7 e — —— 20—
e e P p i g g !,‘4‘4 A=l = pg_|
F—F - 3 - = T - - ra T ___{wi
e B i, | « o (s L .4-_..2;.1-.;_. Bl el 11/',:1.5/: ; __".Ij»::_.h ]{_: 27—
== I dEp ==
— 26— :.,..;L‘_ e e 26—
rEEEEIEREEEEEEFEEEFSED 455 3 oy e [ A 25—
o - 4 " o4 M ; frae _,,_,_-_ %_ ‘I/__ rf A
-4 BT AR e A i i
— 23 —— e e e - =2 23 —
‘ ‘ SRE e = ‘
_22 b 4 : /.4.. :. - i 4 & M - 2 -] M 22_
i L AA T AT | T fl s
_ 21 —— e e —— 21—
T e . _/r_f Paw v B 2 0 . o N [ O e
Pl ey = e ,J _
(M e e
= 19 z b e ,./fl ;1_/_‘ I 1 /"r. . T - =4 18—
: . R Ed P s T B =
PN SRER EEP  <E P ER =S R SES I SRS =l m
- NS e e :;;/ B o s P e TS Fe s o ] e .
e e e -
“13 - < T - - = T - prom 18—'
2 - / i |~ ] 1.0
L 45 \’lx\—{: = /_—}f’ + ;-"/ | !’ 1 E ! 15—
et e 1 m— + o e o i : ¥ ¥
T e = = bis (o ol o=y ot fi + T 11
B S = e e 14—
P 5 5 B s i EN 0 Y Lp Lk = 13—
— 12 :[.,,."f_..—i : : :h “—1— rr SR TSR *.i {2—
1= : = . \ : : : 1
kg/m o e I ruts i iy ke o Ee e s D Ca e kg/m
2 3 4 5 B 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 37 18 19 20
Pubshed May 30, 2000 {meciSed 1071650, ,'g"" a
SOURCE" Davoloped by tho Natoral for Hoalt Stalisticn ¥ colsborntion wii /)
the Nefional Canter for Chrmnic Digass Prawanition and Hesth Promosion (000). 7 s
g i) BAFER+ HEALTHIEN: PEOPLE"

Affix Patent Label
(@%) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Visla Way * Ocacngide + CA » 92058

o




Patient Care Service:
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy
Page 7 of 14

Birth to 36 Months: Boys Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Boys Head
Circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length Percentiles #6290-1020 - Sample

@-Iculmumo O O O

Birth to 36 months: Boys NAME
Length-for-age and Walght-for-age percentiles REGORD #
Bith 3 ] 8 12 15 18 21 24 27 3 33 38
7T T A A 8 LA R RALE A2 RS RS S S M I DR AR 8 B SR S 2 13 B A Kt ST KR W T
;:’:— Lo ] AGE (MONTHS) —-em- InJ]
30510 : oEEo D Fae N
T s e T i e o i o e e ot o e e e o e et I e o - na ]
35 o S ) = 1 s ot e St ,Jsol‘Lss ~$_ T
LR = EESEs raliy
= g = L -,41°¢-90 :.35_
g g i e == ‘i,f;;/:, = =
o
AEAT L A L T
=EaSE = T 087
L " [
L o o o s ) {36
E - e 16
N
3 - e | — Lo - - -u-
T =E=smcmes sl
H T s Dt s ] = I=E 1324
r{ - = ;;’lm;__14
A P A e - 30w
: —=ay | &
1 ' -og- |
ifet= [ ] e 10 3 G
- — e a2 ¥
P ook T = e I P
= - = 111 24
P T T T T T
EgTpr g S A 10+ 22-
cal - 9_:20_
r : B 16
. TYi7 I B e ey o e [
[T A2 L AGE MoNTHS) 5 e
[t V7 121§ TT187 t21] T24] [27] 1301133t +36 9T
-_ﬁ_ AL ';El Mather's Staturg Gasunlonat
‘g 1ot - ,'{ Father's Stature AQe: Weeks Comment
i 5]{1: 1; ¥ Dais A Langth | Head Zirc
: fith
G Mo — A
— 47/ :
T
[~ B H 7
gl 814 & : *
Wi cEeaas
S N S T
b | ke FHATTT 1T

Bith 3 6 9

Pubitzimdg My 20, 2000 {vodfed 4/2001), :'lf[o"a
EOURCE: Developsd by he Netonal Certer for Heath Sistics I colldongion wifi b;
2w Najiona! Cantar kr Chvonks Disazaa Preversion nd Health Framation (20005, ]

SAPER » HLALTTIER* PEOTLE™

@ - — Aflix Pavert Label
Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way » Oceenside + CA + 52056

BIRTH TO 36 MONTHS: BOYS

ul“ﬂﬂ“l""m LENGTH-FOR-AGE AND
52003020

WEIGHT-FOR-AGE PERCENTILES

{Fv 1307




Patient Care Service

Growth Chart Documeniation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy

Page Bof 14
@ @ O O O
Birth to 38 months: Boys
Head clrcumference-for-age and NAME
Weight-for-length percentiles RECORD #
H
E
A
D
c
A
H
E v
A M
° £
c R/
- N
A ¢
c E
u
M
F
E
R
E -
N
c
E
w
E
[
G
H
T
w
E
1
G
H
T : :
y| e 2627 28 20 30 31 52 33 34 35 30 57 30 99 40 41| In
"4‘_=1 7 Dao_| Ags | Woight | Longth | Heas Gro. Comment
Tlgzé_kg ===
©M |48 48 5052 54 56 56 B0 &2
) T T T T
In pa 19 20 21222 20
Publishexd May 39, PS00 modied 10/18%K). ,“‘ 7
s s
L weny BAFER>MEALTHIER PEOPLE™
“é}"’" - Afix Fatier Labeal
Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way + Ocesnside + CA + 82056
= . BIRTH TO 36 MONTHS: BOYS
|||["|]||"|] HEAD CIRCUMFERENCE-FOR-AGE AND|
B290-1620 WEIGHT-FOR-LENGTH PERCENTILES
Mgt N}

45



Patient Care Service
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Necnates Policy
Page 9 of 14

Birth to 36 Months: Girls Length-for-Age and Weight-for-Age Percentiles and Girls Head
Circumference-for-Age and Weight-for-Length Percentiles #6290-1018 - Sample

@ﬁri-i]'ih'ch:co O O O

Birth to 36 months: Girls NAME
Length-for-age end Waight-for-age percentilas RECORD #

Bith 3 8 2 12 15 18 21 24 27 3 33 36

:L:E.cm .'J". J NA AR RERATR BN RN SR A AGE' (M'd JI_IE.}' AR T T em :[n—-
S I 0 S [ o e '_:_:;i;;' i
_as-mo o e o P e o o _;,."..L-._,.',.__. Bt i A e e 100--‘%_‘ 5
[V T EEone ARG o0 S i i S I S i e e e e i e s [ i T [ Y [ o i A = [ In--r'*_—‘;'aa_' G
w3
- __95 ] I ) | = ﬁ_- - T
37:‘ I DO S GRS A GO0 g N T hael ot L . ’-..u.’L :37 H
‘33" == r, = a/ 90-.‘_35‘_
o e IR [ [ 3 oA L e =] Fas
F34 - 'f:" P i e Fd =
;33-85 iy + - n e I = i ol 8 n‘/ —~
- =T - S - —t
F3es 2Tt A ] PAtEE=S
-31_.“ - > = - )
L [ — 2P T I SR NS Em ATy
E _:_: 75 =y ,/I.u" = ,"K}'—T—lﬁ:_
e e R
T -27—-1_'?G 7] > ":’& ’}' - o . .l 1L 17‘3’-_15-: ]
H E 1 A 2 A P T }r o o o ey o 32
= vy S ) e B« v 75 e N s gt £
- 14 /T ,d-f A ’%ﬂ$ ..30- w
R /j/ R T | P +1 18- E
- +. - . Tl—-i- - Ld e :_ ] ‘
: t 4 28 28
= A A . o ""’j‘i—;—'iz a
:‘ S 4 /, “"'5?" . —"i‘jg 26" :.I
] i By - -t .
. v ra - = 3 -
: i - et 11124~
A P g e > LT T e N
- Z = 1 an.
B AST— T // r Ol I e R 7t o o O 0 I L
:‘ o S g .}_ 4 yﬁ . PR E L
o [ ™ rArasy L i el 120
90 T P P ol e -] R |
C15= ra T Lo
= “‘/’j'_/d/,f/ ’,J ": e ot T T 18
. - .t v,. - _‘z._ 7 - :‘ 4—1- - 1 SR, DR (R - ‘ - -“ ol s -
161 ,____’l/f// o o b9 1 _:13'
=7 PV a7 AP - T : AL (MONTHS) kg1 1b-
| L HVAAA AT i2] {38% 418+ +21+ 124312711307 133 136 91
14 7
—B8 PR Mother's Gtature Gestetionat
'g et — AT 7 Father's Stature Age: Weaka Comment
| —-g—/‘- /1/. Dala Age it | Length | Hesd T
a o0 f/ﬁ T - s B 2ih
H L - /1
L=/ S
’,_3'//}'.1: ¥
-6~ EEE
—2
'bmm

Bith 3 8 g

mmummmm: ',7"' v

mnnmmumm collzboraion wim i b
Nationa! Carmet o Chionie Dissess Pryvention and Healh Prometion (3I00)

WJMMM BAFER » HEALYMIXR+ PROPLE™

Alfix Paent Lebal
@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vielz Way - Ocecnside + CA » 92056

BIRTH TO 36 MONTHS: GIRLS

|||mﬂm"ﬂ|ﬂﬂ LENGTH-FOR-AGE AND
1018

WEIGHT-FOR-AGE PERCENTILES

[Feew 12707




Patient Care Service i
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy
Page 10 of 14

@\Ic 14138 e-lo-c O O O O
Birth to 3& months: Girla
Head circumference-for-age and NAME

Waight-for-length parcentlies RECORD #
15 18 21 24

e

=E=== AGE (MONTHS) =

\I;

LRITETiNE

. liaz ;!'I R

.I I

mOZMIMMICOTI=0 OTpmMT

i

1] e

“TO—-—m=

w

E

'

G —

H = LENGTH kg Ib

T8 =5 7zl 1 | =64 56 GATD 72 74 76 T8 60 B2 B4 BS £3 90 92 BA D5 98100 | || €M
Ly A==l 71=2 5] 26 27 2820 90 31 32 33 34 35 58 37 38 38 40 41 jn

g4 4=2 =t

Deta Weight | Langth Head Cire. Comment

€M |8 48 50 52 54 58 58 60 &2
U] 1 DR Vo g
fn '8 10 20'21722 23 24

: Darvuiopadt bry the Nationgl Cerrtss for Health Etediedics in colisboration with
The Nional Geret for Clvonin Dissasy Pryvieriser st Heslt Promgbon (2000).
- =iz BAFER: EALTHIER FEOPLE™

UL ff
Putitetted bary 3G, 2000 (rcdved 10/18/00). L%&ﬁ

HMOQETmamaECOI=-0 D>MI

@) Affix Pasent Lebel
( ) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vistn Way - Oceanside + CA - 92058

BIRTH TO 36 MONTHS: GIRLS
|| Elm HEAD CIRCUMFERENCE-FOR
L} AGE AND WEIGHT-FOR-LENGTH
o 3 PERCENTILES




Patient Care Services-Relisy-Manual
Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Policy
Page 11 of 14

Fenton Growth Chart #6070-1015 - Sample

e
go

65 T —
X i Fol 3
60 F et o e 1
C ] [ i :. 2 ]
55 | —— . //: 1 55
E 1 ‘! \:eﬂg ! ar ] /I & ‘ E E
50 F ; S e e 1 508
- Co C J':’/,—”’ij-’ 1 E
u ; PR B - 3 g
45 F — T T 1 458
40 | // ' =] 40
o5 e e s
8 B A ¢ .
£30 ,// L 155
] [~ | e 0 t
o raig il 7
25 =t A s
et ' .
20 :{ ' 4 4
4 — 1 4
N iz
35 F - 353
- 1778
L -1 &
3k 1 3=
» 3 o
L - (7]
- N =
.25 125
m =
E " ]
E L. -
e 2 [ 4 2
E : 3
E15 [ - 315
[T = -]
I e INETETEE
1E <] i Plat growth in terms of completed 1
- / Gz weeks of gestation.
[~ s Scowren Iurmtennn waigr - KisTer WS 0
05 f=—i B e er® | 0.5
- o
- ,.;....;.r.'::".;;r:;::":::::"""‘”"
0

05532 26 23 a3 46 48

7 T g

Ges ational age week

Affix Patient Label

@) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Woy + Oceonside » CA « 82056

BOT-1015

I""] FENTON GROWTH CHART

B UGN

48



Patient Care Service I

Growth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonales Policy

Page 12 of 14

Fenton Preterm Growth Chart - Boys — Sample

Fenton preterm
]

S
[$)]

Centimeters

Y
O

o
(3]

[
o

Centimelers
N
3]

o
o

-
4]

Lo
tn

w

Weight {kilograms)

)
n

=
n

N

N

Weight (kilograms)
]

j:zms;

Curves aqual the WHO Growth Standard

at SO weeks,

B
®

=

>

Soureas LirBAn.ne $tvon » Getmany (Vogh 2010),
1 Unated Stadea (Otsen 20101 Avairaia [Rebenn 1999).
JC01) Scolland | Bhnale 2008]. and

05 St

sty (Birtsnd 2010) Posi fetn kothon - the Workd Health
Oeparazaton Cooman Stantars. 2008

www.ucalgary.caffenton

0,524 26 28 30 32
Date;

1 Lt
34‘ 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50

Gestational age (weeks)

49



Patient Care Service i

Growih Chart Documaentation for Pediatrics, Adolescents and Neonates Pollcy

Page 13 of 14

Fenton Preterm Growth Chart — Girls — Sample

-

Fenton preterm growth charl - girls
LI [} ]

e D a=r"

-

-
™

i =]

| o]

=~ o

| o] e

- e
-
ol

N
n

f-Y
(==’

Centimeters

o
w

[£3]
o

Centimaters
N
I3

N
o

-
[#)]

“-

",

™,

s

*;

w
th

.‘a

NS, DR BV ALY B —
v
S

..-.\

N
w

Weight (kilograms)

N
n

n
tn

[\

3%

-
18]

Weight (kilograms)

} ﬁmaf

Curves equel thoe WHO Growih Standord

al 50 weeks

Sartet rnAthhe 4acin « Germany [Vogl 2210),

Ustdad Stated [Orsan 280), Ausbaba (Robers 19991

CEn3a0 (RDmet 200T), S tng (Bonclc 2008, ond

Rty (Berns 2010). Pesd Ierm pocion - B World Moolh
O Giawth 5 . 2008

www.ucalgary.caffenton

[l
28 30

32 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50

Gestational age (weeks)

50



Patient Care Service

s-Pelieeldanual
Grawth Chart Documentation for Pediatrics, Adolescants and Neonates Policy
Page 14 of 14

Classification of Newborns — Based on Maturity and Intrauterine Growth — Sample

CLASSIFICATION OF NEWBORNS -
BASED ON MATURITY AND INTRAUTERINE GROWTH Side 2
Symbols: X - 1st Exam O - 2nd Exam

WEEK OF GESTATION WEEK OF GESTATION
- 24 25 26 87 25 20 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 36 30 40 41 4243 M2425262728293031 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 20 40 41 42 43
- 504 i
StH | En 7% 40| HEAD CIRCUM-
50T GTH___cm (e =] som! a9 FERENCE_____cm
- [ 1 2% o
48 i A k14
47 y.4 s — 0% 36 1 “_F 0%
46 ‘f ¥ P P 35 “ .‘75%
45 7 /' 7 /r 34 p L= S
- rdipAK P 33 /.{ o e e
43 [ 1 /, 32 v 2 o 4/' ull a
4? 2 My ay.d ;‘, 2 W1 L7
4 :h'_ rd 4 l’ 2 ¥ 12) 4 P
40 b 7 29 " 7 rd o
P ) o8 B L, 214
39 AR A ]
38 n i/ 7 | oA P
37 , 1 A % LA
25
35 N
as e 24
34 r P 23
33 L ﬁo
2 :
a ' 360
%0 GM, 350
0 4000 3.40
1 80%| 3800 2,30 [{ATATERNE WEXHTAENGTH AT
[| WEIGHT. gm ) roxfaeoo e msmmnmms
= ] | 3400 310 ok
AT 2200 3.00 =
7 /,4?“.‘ | 2% 3000 2.80
’ 2800 2.80 -
Fidr " { LA ” o
= Adamanzanni e
- -
o A/ ," va — 7 ~=F L 2%
fggg / : 4 :..;g i E i 10%
7 3 4 14" {___..—
e RPEs 2477 = 2=
oA A AL =l ]
1200 T 1233 =
1000 i T # g -
800 2L ,:" 1.80 - o
800} Bl 1.70
400 1.60
0 PRE-TERM -] TEM  [POSTTERM 05225 26 27 26 29 30 31 32 33 94 35 36 37 58 39 40 41 4243
WEEK OF GESTATION
15t Exam (X} 2nd Exam {0)
LARGE FOH GESTATIONAL AGE {LGA)
APPROPRIATE FOR GESTATIONAL AGE (AGA)
SMALL FOR GESTATIONAL AGE (SGA)
AgeatExam | e hrs
Signature of Elaminer M.DJR.N, M.DJRN.

Adaplad lrom Lubchanco LO, Hansman €, and Boyd E: Pediatr, 1966;37:407; Battagila FC, and Lubehenca LO: J Pedlatr, 1967,71:158.

91



&
(@) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: HYPOGLYCEMIA MANAGEMENT IN THE ADULT PATIENT

L POLICY:
A. Function: Management of the adult patient with hypoglycemia.
B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Tri-City Healthcare District using hospital approved point of care blood glucose
meter
C. Excludes: Patients on intravenous insulin infusion.
Il ASSESSMENT:
A. Assess patient for hypoglycemia:

1. Blood glucose less than 70 mg/dL with or without symptoms.

2. Early adrenergic symptoms may include pallor, diaphoresis, tachycardia, shakiness,
hunger, anxiety, irritability, headache, dizziness

3. Later neuroglycopenic symptoms may include confusion, slurred speech, irrational or
uncontrollable behavior, extreme fatigue, disorientation, loss of consciousness, seizures,
pupillary sluggishness, decreased response to noxious stimuli.

il. TREATMENT:
A. Treat if the point of care (POC) blood glucose is:
1. Less than 70 mg/dL for the diabetic patient, non-diabetic patient and outpatient
2. Less than 60 mg/dL for the pregnant patient during all phases of the pregnancy
B. If patient is conscious and able to tolerate oral intake, give one 15 gram tube of glucose gel. May
give 4 ounces orange or apple juice if patient refuses glucose gel.

1. If the POC blood glucose was less than 50 mg/dL give an additional 15 gram tube of
glucose gel (fotal of 30 grams of glucose gel). May give additional 4 ounces orange or
apple juice if patient refuses glucose gel (total of 8 ounces orange or apple juice).

C. If patient is NPO or unable to tolerate oral intake or has a decreased level of consciousness,
administer:

1; 30 mL of 50% Dextrose intravenously (IV) at a rate of 10mL per minute.

a. If the POC blood glucose was less than 50 mg/dL give an additional 20 mL of 50%
dextrose (total of 50 mL of 50% dextrose)

2, If no IV access, Glucagon 1 mg subcutaneously (SQ) or intramuscularly (IM) times one
{do not repeat).

D. Recheck POC blood glucose in 15-30 minutes after treatment.
y If equal to or greater than 70 mg/dL, no additional treatment required.
2. If still less than 70 mg/dL:
a. Repeat above treatment
b. Obtain serum bload glucose to verify: blood glucose level
(o3 If repeated POC blood glucose and initial POC blood glucose was less than 50
mg/dL notify physician and request a 10% dextrose infusion
E. Notify the attending physician/AHP immediately only if treatment is ineffective, otherwise notify
physician of hypoglycemic episode(s) prior to next dose of scheduled insulin or hypoglycemic
agent.
Pgﬂm Clinical N Ph. 3 | Madical Profassional
are nica urse Diabaetic armacy nter- edical rofassional Board of
Sovan | Pt | Eonau | Tk Fore | o | iy | Exul, | i || At | G2
xpart
aaz, | 0902 4115, e 051512716, | 1112,08115, [ 31713 A o619 1015,0517, | 213
1018 il gz11’112, 02117,12/18 | 0317, 0119 | o007 0hvg %11;. nia ot

952



Patient Care Services

~Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult Patient Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 2
F. Treatment of serum (lab draw) blood glucose if less than 70mg/dL.

1. Because serum blood glucose is resulted at least 40 minutes (or more) after the blood is
drawn, recheck with POC blood glucose prior to treatment. If less than 70 mg/dL., treat as
outlined above.

. DOCUMENTATION:
A. Document the following:

1. Document patient symptoms, glucose values, treatments, and patient’s response to
treatment and physician notification in the medical record.

2. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure,

the Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic healih record as
a standardized procedure.
a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

3. Document administration of medications on the Medication Administration Record

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:

A. Current unencumbered California RN license.

B. Education and Training: Biood glucose analysis training using blood glucose monitoring device
including hypoglycemia management.

C. Initial Evaluation: Orientation

D. Ongoing Evaluation: Annual blood glucose monitoring device review with return demonstration
and hypoglycemia management.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine; and Administration.

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. All Registered Nurses (RNs) who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above
are authorized to direct and perform Hypoglycemia Management Standardized Procedure.

REFERENCE(S):

A. California Diabetes and Pregnancy Program Sweet Success: Guidelines for Care. 20152042,
California Department of Public Health.

B. Clinical Diabetes, Volume 34, Number 4, Fall 2016, American Diabetes Association.

C. Diabetes Spectrum Volume 18, Number 1, 2005,

D. Hospital Practice, 2016, Volume 44, No. 1, 1-8.

E. Rule of 15 endorsed by the ADA and Mayo Clinic, Complete Nurses Guide to Diabetes Care,

second edition, ADA, 2009.

93



DELETE: Material is -
covered in Elsevier Skills

Distrbution:
Patient Care Servi

@ Tri-City Medical Center

PROCEDURE: POSTURAL (ORTHOSTATIC) VITAL SIGNS, OBTAINING

Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities when obtaining postural (orthostatic) vital signs.

Supportive Data: Abnormal postural vital signs may indicate intravascular volume depletion, fluid loss,
inadequate vasoconstriction, cardiac dysrhythmias or autonomic insufficiency secondary
to the administration of pharmacological agents.

Equipment: Manual blood pressure cuff and stethoscope or automatic blood pressure machine

Patlent Care

Clinical

Nurse Medical Staff | Pharmacy & Medical Profassional
%:r::z:: P':-::-lg:-ja: r:s Executive Department Therapeutics Exacutive Administration Affairs glor:::go':;
Expert Committes Committea or Division Committee Committee Committee
12/94, 6/09
! ! 712, 12115, 8/12, 01/18, 8/12, 6/16, 9112, 07116,
61'1%.3’111;15. 04119 04/19 nia nfa 05/19 06/19 nia 9/12, 716

54



Patlent Care Services
Postural {Orthosiatic) Vital Signs, Oblaining Procedurs
Page 2of 2

95



~
‘cu) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

VASG-BAND-HEMOSTAT-RADIAL ARTERY COMPRESSION BANDDEVICE

Purpose:

To ensure continuity of care and patient safety when using a radial compression
band to maintain or regain hemostas:s post cardlac cathetenzatlon or post radlal
artery procedure z

Supportive Data:

Vasc Band Hemostat Weéels—352—4—352—7—3529—353¥-} Package lnsert lnstructions
for Use, Vascular Solutions, Inc

Vascular Solutions Vasc Band Hemostat Tips for Optimal Performance

Vascular Solutions Vasc Band Hemostat Clinical Deployment Steps

TR Band Instructions for Use

Equipment:

Vase-Band-Hemestat-Radial Artery Compression Device

Syringe - syringe supplied by compression device manufacturer 22-mL-supplied
with the-Vasc-Band

Pulse Oximeter with Probe

2 x 2 Gauze Dressing

Small FegadermTransparent Dressing (i.e., tegaderm) e~Manufasturers-Adhesive

Bandage

Wirist Positioning Splint

Personal Protective Equipment (i.e., gloves, gown, mask, face shield, eye
protection)

A DEFINITIONS:

1. Radial Compression DeviceVase-Band-Hemastat: A radial artery compression device is used
to control surface bleedlng from radial arterlal access sntes aﬂer radial artery catheter removal
eempsessuen—dewee.

2. Band Balloon Mase-Band: a clear plastic inflatable balloon used to apply pressure to the
radial artery.

3. Arterial Occlusion: — A blockage of blood flow through an artery

4, Non-Occlusive Pressure Applied to an Artery: — manual pressure or pressure applied with the
use of a mechanical device that does not block (prevent) the flow of blood through an artery.

| 5. Occlusive Pressure Applied to an Artery: — manual pressure or pressure applied with the use of
a mechanical device that blocks the flow of blood through an artery
[ B. POLICY:

1. The radial artery sheath may be removed by the procedural staff or interventional Cardiologist
prior to applying the radial arterial compression banddevica.

2. The Registered Nurse (RN) on the receiving unit is responsible for monitoring, weaning, and
removing the radial arterial compression banddevise post procedure.

3. A radial band Fhe-Vasc-Band-Hemestat may not be used to apply occlusive pressure to the
radial artery at any time.

4. Do not place a blood pressure (BP) cuff or obtain blood pressure measurements on the affected

arm.

C. PROCEDURE:

| 1.

Application of the Radial Arterial Compression BandDevice

| Def . Pharmacy
RaviewPatient Clinlcal Nurse Division of and& Medical Profassional Board of
Care Services Policles & Exacutive Cardiolo Therapeutics Executiva Administration Affalrs Directors
Content Pracadures Commities oy C pam Committea Committes
| Expert ommittee
| ”E“""oa“g”’ 02117,03118 | 02/17,0319 | 04/17, 05/19 n/a 06/17, 05119 0619 0717, nia 0717

56



Patient Care Services
~Radial Artery Compression Device Procadure

Page 2 of 4

e-f.

£g.

Using sterile technique, open the pouch and transfer the bandMase-Band and syringe

onto the sterile field.

a. Identify the type of syringe (locking or non-locking)

At the end of the catheterization procedure, withdraw the introducer sheath 2-3

centimeter (cm) from the puncture site.

Align the center of the bandMase-Band balloon 2-5 millimeter (mm) proximal to the

puncture site and wrap the Mass-Bband around the patient's extremity.

i Inflation line can point in either direction e.g. toward patient’s hand or
toward patient’s head.

-Secure the device to the patientspatient’s extremity using the hook and loop fastener.

For optimal fit, secure the band around the extremity, allowing no room for slack, but do

not overtighten.

Draw 18 millilitermeter (mL) of air into the syringe and connect the syringe to the

inflation valve on the Mase-Bband

Slowly inject air into the Mase-Bband balloon while simultaneously removing the sheath

from the vessel. Once the sheath is completely removed, continue to inject air into the

balloon until hemostasis is achieved. Note: the nominal air injection volume for the Mase

bBand is 15 mL and the maximum air injection volume is 18 mL

Slowly withdraw air from the-Vase bBand balloon until there is cozing from the puncture

site. Once oozing is observed, re-inject 2 mL of air into the Mass-Bband until complete

hemostasis is achieved.

Post-Application of the Mase-Radial Band:-Nursing-Gare-Areas

a.

Initial Assessment on Arrival to Nursing Care Areas
i Upon arnval to the nursing care area assess the followmg- =k e T
: F pd-every 5 minutes times
(x) 3 (Tlmlng beglns wuth the first assessment performed with the procedure
RN).
1) Blood pressure (BP)
1H2) Heart Rate (HR)
2)3)  Cardiac rhythm
3}4) Oxygen Saturation (SpO2)
435) Assess temperature once on arrival and then as orderedeutlined-in-this

policy

5)6) Radial pulse by palpation proximally and distally to the Mase bBand

6)7) Neurovascular checks (Rperfusion {by means of pulse oximetry, color,
sensation and temperature of the affected armand-sensation).-with-the

Vasc-Band)
#A8) Presence of bleeding
ii. Implement continuous pulse oximetry monitoring
1) Place the pulse oxnmeter probe on the mdex fi nger or thumb on affected

2) Check pulse oxlmetry waveform
a) If pulse oximetry waveform is not visible (e.g., lost), decrease
pressure slowly by removing 1 mL of air from the Mase bBand until
a waveform is visible
b) If pulse oximetry waveform is lost and bleeding is present see
management-Management of bleedingBleeding

ii. Document-the vital sign results and assessment findings in the electronic health
record {EHR)-

Vital Signs Assessment and Monitoring:

i. Assess the following every 15 minutes x 4 then, every 30 minutes after
completing the initial assessment until the VaseBband is removed and then per
the Standards of Care or unit policy. Document results in the EHRmedical
reserd.

a7



Patient Care Services

| MaseBand-Hemestat-Radial Artery Compression Device Procedure

Page 3of 4

1)  Vital signs (BP, HR, cardiac rhythm, respiratory rate, Sp02). Assess

temperature as orderedaseessment-includes-the-following:
c. Procedure Slte Assessment
i. Assess the procedure site B

every 15 minutes x 4 then, every 30 mlnutes aﬂer completlng the initial

assessment until the Vase-Bband is removed, then per the Standards of Care or

unit policy.
il Procedure site assessment, includes but is not limited to, the following:

1) Assess the procedure site for the presence of bleeding e.g.,— new or an
increase presence of blood, blood oozing around balloon and/or the
presence of a hematoma asfellows-cras-ordered

2) Assess perfusion of procedure hand (by means of color, sensation and
temperature of the arm with the Vase-Bband)

3) Palpate the radial pulse

ii. Document the assessment findings in the Elestrenic-Health-Record{EHR)
3. Neurovascular Assessments:
a. Perform a neurovascular assessment with vital signs and site assessments
b. The Masc-Bband should be left on the patient's extremity for at least 120 minutes (2
hours) following catheterization unless directed otherwise by physician's order or
patlent s condltlon
4, Device Removal:
a. Maintain the Vase-Bband in-on for the recommended device removal time, withdraw 2
mL of air from the Mase-Bband and observe the puncture site for bleeding
ai. If using a locking syringe, place syringe in the locked position prior to
attaching to the inflation valve.
b. If bleeding is present, re-inject 1-2 mL ofz air to restore hemostasis. Wait 30 minutes and
repeat Device Removal process
C. if no bleeding is present, continue to remove 2 mL of air every 15 minutes x 3 or until
pressure is fully released (e.g. the Mass-Bband balloon is depressed).
d. When the pressure is fully released and hemostasis is confirmed, carefully remove the
Mase-Bband from the puncture site;. Do not being-careful-nette disrupt the clot.
e. Apply a 2 x 2 gauze dressing and secure the dressing with a transparent-tegaderm
dressing. Do not apply a non-adhering -wrap over the dressing.
f. Remove wrist positioning splint 15 to 60 minutes after dressing applied.
e-g. Discard radial band, syringe and wrist positioning splint
5. Management of Bleeding:
a. Ensure device is in the proper position
b. Slowly inject enough air in the Vase-Bband balloon to restore hemostasis. Do not inject
more than 15 mL of air.
c. Palpate for the presence of a radial pulse. A palpable radial pulse must be present at all
times.
d. Do net—evernot over-inflate the compression device to occlude radial pulse.
e Notify the physician immediately if unable to regain hemostasis.
f. Uncontrolled bleeding:

58



Patient Care Services
| Mase-Band-Hemostak-Radial Artery Compression Device Procedurs

Paga 40of4

i. Remove radial arterial compression device, elevate arm while applying manual
pressure to the radial ariery proximal to the puncture site to stop the bleeding.
ii. Notify Physician immediately.
Removing the Dressing:

a. Remove dressing within 24 hours of application or prior to discharge for inpatients. Do
not disrupt the clot.

b. Apply a Band-Aid to puncture site or leave open to air if ordered

Reportable Conditions:

a. Notify the procedure Rphysician immediately if any of the following occur:

i. New onset of distal pain, numbness, tingling, duskiness, bleeding, unable to
palpate the radial pulse, or circulation to the hand appears compromised
Documentation:
a. Document the following in the-Electronic-Health-Recerd-{EHR)
All assessments
ii. Vital signs with pulse oximetry resuits
iii. Neurovascular assessments

iv. Dressing applications and changes
V. Physician Notification
vi. Education provided — use Depart Custom Education: Cardiac leaflet Radial

Artery Cardiac Catheterization/Angioplasty Discharge Instructions

a9



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY
PATIENT CARE
ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF)
Refusal to Readmit
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8610-300
Administrative Patient Care Content Expert Approval: 04/19
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/19
Utilization Review Committee Approval: 05/19
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05/19
Administration Approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

A POLICY:
1. The following policy is used to address situations in which Skilled Nursing Facilities (SNF)
refuse to readmit their patients (from either the Emergency Department or from an acute

inpatient bed).

B. BACKGROUND
1. Nursing homes/SNF’s have a tendency to not readmit certain long-term (non-skilled) Medi-
Cal/private pay patients once they transfer them to an acute care hospital due to their
perception that the patient is undesirable. Reasons for this can include (but not limited to):

a. Patient/family behavioral issues (e.g. Dementia)
b. Nursing home's perception that patient's care is cost prohibitive
c. Patients not paying their bill
2. The nursing home's refusal to readmit patients is viewed as illegal based on the following:

a. As per Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, Nursing-nursing home
residents have the right to be readmitted after a hospital stay. Whenever a resident is
transferred to a hospital, the nursing home must provide a written notice to the
patient/family of their right to hold the nursing home bed for up to seven days.

i For private pay patients — patient/family must pay the per-diem rate to hold the
bed.
ii. For Medi-Cal patients, Medi-Cal will pay for the bed hold up to seven days.

1) Note: any Medi-Cal patient has a right to be readmitted to a nursing home
even if the patient's hospital stay exceeds seven days (the nursing home
must readmit the patient to the first available bed).

ii. Failure of the nursing home to provide the patient with written notification of their
right to a bed-hold and/or failure to honor a bed hold is considered an

“involuntary transfer” and is illegai.

C. PROCEDURE:
| 1. Case Management/Social Worker (CM/MSW) — Upon being notified by a SNF of their intention
to NOT readmit their patient, the CM/MSW must inquire as to whether the patient (or surrogate
decision maker) agrees to return back to the SNF.
a. If the patient agrees to return, the CM/MSW contact the SNF and inquire as to the
specific reason why they refusing readmission. Inquire should include contacting the

60



Administrative Patient Care Services
| Skitied Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to Readmit Policy 8610-300

Page 2 of 3

SNF’s Director of Nursing (DON) or Administrator (Adm) as to why the SNF will not

readmit. Specifically:

i. What is the specific reason as to why you (SNF) will not readmit?

ii. What was the payer source used at the time of transferring the patient to Tri-City
Medical Center {TCMC)?

ii. The CM/MSW should remind the SNF of their legal obligation to readmit the
patient back, citing that Medi-Cal allows for a bed hold to return back to the SNF.

If (after contacting the SNF and addressing the above questions) the SNF continues to

refuse to readmit the patient, the CM/MSW must notify CM-ManagementDirector of

Case Management.

i. GhM-Director of Case Management will then contact the SNF in an attempt to
clarify the reason to not readmit and remind the SNF of their legal obligations.

i, If the SNF continues to refuse readmission, GM-Dlrector of Case Management
will make it clear to the SNF that it will be the intent of
{TCMC} to contact The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) to file a
complaint on behalf of the patient regarding the SNF’s decision to refuse
readmission.

If the SNF continues to refuse, GM-MaragementDirector of Case Management must

contact the CDPH office (see Reference List for office contact numbers for CDPH offices

near TCMC).

i GM-ManagementDirector of Case Management will file a formal complaint on
behalf of the patient regarding the SNF's refusal to readmit the patient. CDPH
will need the following information to open the complaint process:

1) Patient name, date of TCMC admission
2) Name of SNF — name of SNF staff that was contacted
3) Issue (SNF refusing to readmit patient)

i. CDPH will go out to the SNF and investigate the complaint with the goal of
convincing the SNF to readmit the patient.

CDPH will contact GM-ManagementDirector of Case Management to provide the

results of the investigation.

i. If the SNF continues to refuse readmission of the patient, the GM
MaragementDirector of Case Management/CDPH will contact the Department
of Healthcare Licensing Board to initiate a “Refusal to Readmit Hearing". (see
Department of Healthcare Licensing Board below)

The Refusal to Readmit Hearing consists of the following process:

i, CDPH will contact GM-MaragementDirector of Case Management as to the
date and time of the hearing.

ii. Hearings are held at TCMC

ii. Participants in the hearing include:

1) Hearing Officer

2) Patient (and/or surrogate decision maker)

3) SNF staff (Adm, DON}

4) TCMC staff (6M-ManagementDirector of Case Management, MSW,
CM, interpreter(s))

iv. The focus of the hearing is for the SNF to explain their reasons to deny
readmission.
V. Approximately 72 hours after the hearing, the hearing officer will fax to all parties,

the hearing decision to readmit.

If the decision is in favor of patient to return back to the SNF, GM-ManagementDirector
of Case Management will contact the SNF and inform them of the results of the hearing
and coordinate time to readmit.

i If the SNF continues to refuse readmission, cM-MaragementDirector of Case

Management will contact TCMC Legal Counsel as to their input to address this
issue.

61



Administrative Patlent Care Services
| Skilled Nursing Facility [SNF) Refusal to Readmit Policy 8610-300

Page 30f 3

ii. cM-ManagementDirector of Case Management will also re-connect with the
CDPH office and inform them of the SNF's intent to not readmit despite the ruling
from the hearing.
a. If the SNF continues to stall and not readmit the patient, CM-ManragementDirector of
Case Management will instruct the CM/MSW to go back to the patient with the goal of
finding another SNF placement.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Reference List — Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to Readmit

| E. REFERENCE(S):

1.

California Department of Health Care Services: Transfer Discharge and Refusal to Readmit

Unit (available via external link: hitps://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/Pages/Transfer-
Discharge-and-Refusal-to-Readmit-Unit.aspx)

CCR 22, sub-section 72520 (available via external

link: https://govt. westlaw.com/calreqgs/Document/17311F370D4BC11DE8879F 88ESBBODAAAE?
viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CateqoryPageltem&conte
xtData=%28sc.Default%29&bhcp=1)

CFR 42, subsection 483.12(b) (available via external link: https://www.ecfr.qov/cqi-bin/text-
idx?ran=divB&node=42:5.0.1.1.2.2.7.4)

62



Reference List — Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to Readmit

Instructions:

1. Call CDPH first to alert about SNF Refusal to readmit, or appropriate county
2. Once CDPH decides resident should return to SNF, both CDPH & TCMC should notify Department of

Healthcare Licensing Board

Department of Healthcare Licensing Board
Phone: (916)322-5603
Fax: (916)323-3377

San Diego North District Office
7575 Metropolitan Drive, Suite 104
San Diego, CA 92108-4402

District Manager: Carol Littler
District Administrator: Candice Nagel
District Administrator: Jose Cano (A)
Phone: (619) 278-3700

Toll Free: (800) 824-0613

Fax: (619) 278-3725

Counties Served: (Parts of) Imperial, San Diego
North County

San Diego South District Office
7575 Metropolitan Drive, Suite 211
San Diego, CA 92108-4402

District Manager: Donna Loza
District Administrator: Claire Allegretti
District Administrator: JoBeth Henry
Phone: (619) 688-6190

Toll Free: (866) 706-0759

Fax: (619) 688-6444

Counties Served: Imperial, San Diego (Cities south
of Interstate 8)

Riverside District Office

625 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 280

San Bernardino, CA 92408

District Manager: M. Connie Chester
District Administrator: Teresita Reyes
District Administrator: Deena McFarland
Phone: (909) 388-7170

Toll Free: (888) 354-3203

Fax: (909) 388-7174

County Served: Riverside

Orange County District Office

681 S. Parker Street, Suite 200
Orange, CA 92868

District Manager: Hang Nguyen

District Administrator: Kathleen Davidson
District Administrator: Josefina Sabino
County Served: Orange

Phone: (714) 567-2906

Toll Free: (800) 228-5234

Fax: (714) 567-2815

Revised: NEW

Los Angeles District Offices

Administrative Headquarters

Health Facilities Inspection Division
Administration

12440 E. Imperial Highway, Room 522
Norwalk, CA 90650

Acting Chief: Nwamaka Oranusi
Assistant Chief: Suzette Leverette Clark
Toll Free:; 1-800-228-1019

Phone: (562) 345-6884 Gen. #

Fax: (562) 406-8801

Los Angeles North District Office
15643 Sherman Way Street, Suite 200
Van Nuys, CA 91406

Program Manager: Michael Stampfii
Phone: (818) 901-4375

Fax: (562) 409-5096

Los Angeles West District Office

600 South Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 903
Los Angeles, CA 90005

Program Manager: Michael Stampfli

Phone: (213} 351-1131

Fax: (213) 351-0768

Los Angeles East District Office
3400 Aerojet Avenue #323

El Monte, CA 91731

Program Manager: Monica Austin
Program Manager: Eric Stone
Phone: (626) 569-3724

Fax: (626) 927-0842

Los Angeles San Gabriel District Office
5050 Commerce Drive, Suite 102
Baldwin Park, CA 91706

Program Manager: Monica Austin

Phone: (626) 430-5600

Fax: (562) 409-5096

County Served: Los Angeles

Administrative Patient Care Policy. Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Refusal to Readmit

63



2
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE ROLIGY-MANUAL
HUMAN RESOURCES - PAY PRACTICE

ISSUE DATE: 10/04 SUBJECT: Bereavement Leave
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8610-435.01
Administrative Human Resources DepartmentContent Expert Approval: 03/19
Administrative Policy & and-Procedures Committee Approval: 03/19

Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 06/19

Professional Affairs Committee: n/a

Board of Directors:

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for the payment of time away from work to benefited employees for
bereavement. While every attempt will be made to accommodate an employee during his/her
time of bereavement, the department Director may be unable to grant a specific request for
time off due to the workload and staffing needs.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1. Immediate Family Member: An immediate family member shall be defined as the
employee’s spouse, child (including adoption child, minor ward of employee guardian,
foster-child, step-child or grandchild), mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law,
individual who serves as the legal guardian for either the employee the spouse, or the
domestic partner of the employee, brother, sister, step-mother, step-father, brother-in-
law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, grandparents, and California State
registered domestic partners and domestic partner who is a bona fide spousal
equivalent either of the employee, the spouse or the domestic partner of the
employee.

B.C. PROGEDURESPOLICY:

1. To the extent that any applicable collective bargaining agreement that is consistent with
applicable law conflicts with certain provisions of this policy, the collective bargaining
agreement for employees covered under that agreement prevails.

+2. Benefited employees are eligible for bereavement leave upon employment.

3. Employees shall receive up to three (3) days (maximurm-ef-twenty-four{24)-hours)-off with pay if
time off is requested and taken within twe-weeksninety (90) days of the death of an immediate

family member.

3=

4. Paid time off (PTO) shall be based on the employee’s regular scheduled hours.

5. Managers may require employees to provide appropriate documentation if deemed necessary.

6. Employees may use available PTO for time away from work due to the death of an immediate
family member.

7. Time spent away from work for bereavement will not be included in the calculation of overtime.

B. Part-time employees shall receive bereavement pay on a pro-rated basis.

8:D. PROCEDURE(S):

64



Administrative Relisy—Human Resources —Pay Practice
Bereavement Leave Policy 8610-435.01
Page 2 of 2

8-1. Employee informs manager of the need to take bereavement leave.

10-2. Employee completes Request for Time Off form requesting time off and/or PTO.
44-3. Manager arranges for employee to be doleted-removed from the schedule.

4, Time taken off for bereavement leave shall be coded on the employee's time card

accordinglyas-BR\V-Bereavement-

E. FORM(S):
1+21. Request for Time Off

65



@) Tri-City Medical Center

ATE:
REQUEST FOR TIME OFF FROM WORK
REASON FOR ABSENCE
NAME:
] VACATION
DEPARTMENT:
[CJ LEAVE OF ARSENCE
SHIFT: ] NON-MANDATORY EDUCATION (CNA)
NUMBER OF DAYS REQUESTED: [] NON-RECOGNIZED HOLIDAY
{C] PERSONAL
NUMBER OF SCHEDULED WORK DAYS:
] OTHER:
START DATE:
RETURN DATE:
REMARKS:
WEEKEND COVERAGE
\RE YOU SCHEDULED TO WORK A LJYES — 1. WHO WILL ARRANGE COVERAGE FOR YOUR
WEEKEND DURING THIS PERIOD? INO SCHEDULED WEEKEND?
] SELF
IF YES, ANSWER QUESTIONS 1, 2, AND 3. (] SUPERVISOR

2. NAME OF EMPLOYEE WHO WILL WORK YOUR
SCHEDULED WEEKEND:

3. WILL THIS WEEKEND FOR WHICH YOU ARE
SCHEDULED TO WORK BE RE-SCHEDULED AT
ANOTHER TIME?

COYES — WHEN?:
CJNO

I UNDERSTAND THAT IF COVERAGE FOR MY SCHEDULED WEEKEND CANNOT BE ARRANGED BY MYSELF OR THE SHIFT
SUPERVISOR, THIS REQUEST FOR TIME OFF FROM WORK WILL BE DENIED.

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
SIGNATURE APPROVALS
APPROVED  DISAPPROVED DATE
DEPARTMENT MANAGER: | O
IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: O O
8650-1001 {9/08) White - HA Canary - Employes

66



2
(&P Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE
HUMAN RESOURCES - PAY PRACTICE

ISSUE DATE: 10/04 SUBJECT: Compensation for Mandatory
Education

REVISION DATE(S): 12/14 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-474.01

Administrative Human Resources Content Expert Approval: 05M19

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/19

Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

Administration Approval: 06/19

Professional Affairs Committee: n/a

Board of Directors:

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To establish compensation practices for mandatory training and education.

B. PROGEDUREPOLICY:

1.

2.

To the extent that any applicable collective bargaining agreement that is consistent with
applicable law conflicts with certain provisions of this policy, the collective bargaining
agreement for employees covered under that agreement prevails.

All fulltime, part time and per diem employees of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) will be
compensated for their attendance at approved -mandatory; meetings, training programs,
lectures and/or similar activities-(e-g-—renewal-of-requirad-certifications),

Employees will not be reimbursed for expenses related to the re-certification or renewal of
explred certlf' cates or professnonal Ilcenses

Eligible employees will be compensated for actual time spent at approved mandatory
meetings, training programs, lectures and/or similar activities and TCHD will consider
the time as hours worked.

Employees must schedule their approved mandatory meetings, training programs,
lectures and/or similar activities without incurring overtime.

Approved heurs—ieprequwed—e@eaﬂen#eemﬁeaﬂentrammg and seminars are listed on the

following table and are not to exceed the maximum hours.

ClasstComes
GeortificationTraining and Compensation | Payment-ScheduleMaximum Hours
Seminars
Advanced Cardiac Life Actual Time in Initial Certification: 16 Hours
Support (ACLS) Attendance Renewal Certification: 8 Hours

67



Administrative Human Resources Rolicy—Pay Practice-Manual
Fuition-Reimbursement-Loar-ProgramCompensation for Mandatory Education Policy 8610-474.014

Page 2 of 2

HessiCourse
CertificationTraining and Compensation | RaymentScheduleMaximum Hours
Seminars
Basic Life Support (BLS) Actual Time in Initial Certification: Up—Fe-4 Hours
Attendance In-Class Renewal Certification: UpTe
3 Hours
Online Renewal/Skills Certification:Up
Fo 2-3 Hours total
Bkl Corlificalion—16
boues
Fetal Monitoring Actual Time in Initial Certification:— UpFe-16 Hours
Attendance Renewal Certification:— Up-Fo-8 Hours

Neonatal Resuscitation
Program (NRP)

Actual Time in
Attendance

Cerification=4 Hours

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention
(NVChH

Actual Time in
Attendance

Initial Certification:— Up-Te-8 Hours
Renewal Certification:— UpJe-4 Hours
Flex Certification: 3 Hours total

Pediatric Advanced Life

Actual Time in

Initial Certification: 16 Hours

Support/ (PALS) Attendance Renewal Certification: 8 Hours
Safety,! Joint Commission,/ |Actual Time in Raid-For-Asctual Time-RequiredNo
and/or Annual NetLearning | Attendance Maximum
Education

Attendanes
Other MpHuman Resources Approval Required

68



)
(@) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF

ISSUE DATE:

04/08 SUBJECT: Credentialing Policy, Processing
Medical Staff Reappointments

REVISION DATE(S): 04/08;-, 04/10;, 01/12;-, 08/12;-2/18 POLICY NUMBER: 8710-548

Medical Staff Department Approval: 02119
Credentials Committee Approval: 04/1604/19
Pharmacy and-& Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/4605/19
Administration approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0746 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 07116

A. PURPOSE:

1.

B. R

1

2.

To provide an objective, evidence-based credentialing process that enables the Medical Staff to
make informed recommendations to the governing body ensuring candidates for Medical Staff
membership renewal are credentialed according to The Joint Commission, CMS, and Medical
Staff Bylaws requirements.

The Medical Staff shall consider each application for reappointment using the procedure and the
criteria and standards for membership and clinical privileges set forth in the Bylaws and Rules
and Regulations appropriate for each department. The Medical Staff shall perform this function
also for reappointment of privileges for Allied Health Professionals. The Medical Staff shall
investigate each application for reappointment and make an objective, evidence-based decision
based upon assessment of the applicant’'s general competencies before recommending action to
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall uitimately be responsible for granting
membership and privileges. By applying to the Medical Staff for reappointment, the applicant
agrees that regardless of whether he/she is reappointed or granted the requested privileges,
he/she will comply with the responsibilities of Medical Staff membership and the Medical Staff
Bylaws and Rules as they exist and as they may be modified from time-to-time.

EAPPOINTMENT PROCESS:

Schedule for Reappointment

a. As described in the Medical Staff Bylaws Article IV, §4.6, at least 90 days prior to the
expiration date of each staff member's term of appointment, the Medical Staff office shall
provide the member with a reappointment application form . Completed reappointment
application forms shall be returned to the Medical Staff office at least sixty (60) days prior
to the expiration date. Failure, without good cause, to return the form within the specified
timeframe shall result in termination of privileges and prerogatives at the end of the
current staff membership.

Content of Reappointment Form

a. The reappointment application shall seek information conceming the changes in the
member's qualifications since his or her last review. Specifically, the application shall
request an update of all of the information and certifications requested in the appointment
application form with the exception of that information which cannot change over time;
such as information regarding the member’s premedical and medical education, date of
birth, and so forth. The application shall also require information as to whether the
member requests any change in his or her staff status and/or in his or her clinical
privileges, including any reduction, deletion or additional privileges. Requests for

69



Medical Staff
| Credentialing Pelicy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments Policy
Page 2 of 4

additional privileges must be supported by the type and nature of evidence which would

be necessary for such privileges to be granted in an initial application.

i If the staff member’s level of clinical activity at this hospital is not sufficient to
permit evaluation of his or her competence to exercise the clinical privileges
requested, the staff member shall have the burden of providing evidence of clinical
performance at another institution in whatever form the Medical Staff may require.

b. In addition to completing the information requested on the reappointment form, the staff
member shall submit his or her Medical Staff dues as described in the Medical Staff
Bylaws Article XIlI, §13.2. Application for reappointment will be considered incomplete if
dues (or other fine or assessments) are not paid within the time frame as described in
§4.6 of the Medical Staff Bylaws and the member is deemed to be voluntarily resigned
without the rights to a hearing as described in Article VII §7.2 of the Bylaws.

3. Verification and Collection of Information (Medical Staff Bylaws §4.6)

a. The Medical Staff shall, in timely fashion, seek to verify the additional information made
available on each reappointment application and to collect any other materials or
information deemed pertinent by the Department/Division Chair, Credentials Commitiee,
Medical Executive Committee, or Board of Directors. The information shall address
without limitation:

i. Reasonable evidence of current ability to perform privileges that may be requested
including, but not limited to, consideration of the member's professional
performance, judgment, clinical or technical skills and patterns of care and
utilization as demonstrated in the findings of quality improvement, risk
management and utilization management activities.

ii. Participation in relevant continuing education activities.

iii. Level/amount of clinical activity {patient care contacts) at the hospital. Patient care
activities include:

1) Inpatients:
a) Admitting
b) Attending

c) Assisting at Surgery

d) Consulting

e) Operative and other procedures
2) Outpatients:

a) Assisting at Surgery

b) Operative and other procedures
c) Emergency Room visits
iv. Sanctions imposed or pending including, but not limited to, previously successful

or currently pending challenges to any licensure or registration (State or district,
Drug Enforcement Administration) or the voluntary relinguishment of such
licensure or registration.

V. Confirmation of the applicant's health status, both physical and mental, or
substance abuse that could affect his or her ability to exercise the clinical
privileges requested, or whether the applicant required any type of accommodation
in order to exercise the requested privileges safely and competently.

vi. Attendance at Medical Staff Department/Division and committee meetings.

vil. Participation as a staff officer and committee member/chair.

vii.  Timely and accurate completion and preparation of medical records as outlined in
Medical Staff Policy: Medical Record Documentation Requirements 8710-518.

ix. Cooperativeness and general demeanor in relationships with other practitioners,

hospital personnel, and patients as described in the Medical Staff Policy:
Professional Behavior 8710-570.

X. Professional liability claim experience, including being named as a party in any
professional liability claims and the disposition of any pending claims in the past 5
years.,



Medical Staff

| Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments Policy

Page 3of 4

C. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

xi. Compliance with all applicable Medical Staff and hospital bylaws, rules, and
policies.
xii. Two Professional references are required, at least one (1) from a practitioner who

is familiar with the member's current qualifications by virtue of having recently
worked with the member or having recently reviewed the member's cases.

Xii.  Any other pertinent information, which may include, the staff member's activities at
other hospitals and his or her medical practice outside the hospital.

xiv.  Teleradiologists - Hospital affiliations shall be selected for 5 institutions and

verified.
XV. Information concerning the member from the State licensing board and the Federal
National Practitioner Data Bank.
xvi.  Information from other relevant sources.
Department Action
a. The Department/Division Chair shall review the application and all other relevant available

information. The Department/Division Chair will then forward his or her written
recommendations to the Credentials Committee.

Credentials Committee Action

a. The Credentials Committee shall review the application, all other relevant available
information and the Department /Division Chair's recommendations. The committee shall
transmit to the Medical Executive Committee its written recommendations.

Medical Executive Committee Action

a. The Medical Executive Committee shall review the Department/Division Chair's and the
Credentials Committee’s recommendations and all other relevant information available
and shall forward recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Board Closure

a. To ensure the Medical Staff reappointment credentialing process is completed; upon
Board of Directors approval of the reappointments, board closure process shall be
initiated to include notifying the practitioner of the decision regarding privilege(s) and/or
Medical Staff membership.

Reappointment Recommendations

a. Reappointment recommendations shall be written and shall specify whether the member's
appointment should be renewed; renewed with modified membership category and/or
clinical privileges; or terminated. The reason for any adverse recommendation shall be
described.

b. The Medical Staff may require additional proctoring of any clinical privileges that are used
so infrequently as to make it difficult or unreliable to assess current competency without
additional proctoring, and such proctoring requirements imposed for lack of activity shail
not result in any hearing rights.

Failure to File Reappointment Application: As provided in Bylaws, Article 4, §4.5-40.6-4

a. Members who automatically resign under this rule shall be processed as new applicants
should they wish to reapply.

Reapplication After Adverse Appointment: As provided in Bylaws, Article 4, §4.5--10

Relinquishment of Privileges

a. A staff member who wishes to relinquish or limit particular privileges (other than privileges
necessary to fulfill Emergency Room call responsibilities) shall notify the Credentials
Committee identifying the particular privileges to be relinquished or limited.

Additional Privilege Requests

a. Whenever a member desires to increase his/her clinical privileges, he/she shall indicate
additional requested privileges on a privilege request form and submit the completed form
to the Credentials Committee. The member's request must include documentation of
training and/or experience as required by the Rules and Regulations. The request shall be
processed in the same manner as an application for initial clinical privileges.

7



Medical Staff

| Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments Policy

Page 4 of 4

6.

b. Prior to the consideration or granting of any privilege not currently delineated on the
Delineation of Privileges it shall be determined, by the Department/Division Chair whether
the resources necessary to support the requested privilege are currently available or are
available within a specified time frame as stated in the Medical Staff Policy: Requests for
New Privileges/Technologies New to TCMC 8710-526.

Leave of Absence

a. During any period of leave of absence, the requirement for reappointment as specified in
the Bylaws, Article 4.4, shall continue unless waived by the Medical Executive Committee
(MEC).

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1.
2.
3.

Medical Staff Policy: Medical Record Documentation Requirements 8710-518
Medical Staff Policy: Professional Behavior Policy 8710-570
Medical Staff Policy: Requests for New Privileges/Technologies New to TCMC 8710-526

72



2
(G‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California DELETE: Policy Being Deleted

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY

Due to because we do not have the
personnel to support what is

ISSUE DATE: 02/10

REVISION DATE(S): 02/10

Medical Staff Department Approval:
Department of Pediatrics Approval:
Medical Executive Committee Approval:
Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

defined in the policy

SUBJECT: Discharge Planning for Pediatric
and Adolescent Patient

POLICY NUMBER: 8710-561

031703/19
08M1705/19
05M1705/19
06/19
0617 n/a
06/17

73



Medical Staff Policy
Discharge Planning for Pediatric and Adolescent Patient - 8710-561
Page 2of3

74



Medical Staff Policy
Discharge Planning for Pediatric and Adolascent Patient — 8710-561
Page 3 of 3

75



)
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Women's- and Ghildren's-Newborn Services-Manual
—Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)

PROCEDURE: NASOGASTRIC (NG) AND OROGASTRIC (OG) TUBE INSERTION, MAINTENANCE;
AND REMOVAL
Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities in the placement, maintenance, and removal of

enteral tubes.

Supportive Data:

Nasogastric and orogastric tube placement is used for diagnostic and therapeutic
purposes. Enteral tubes are placed to decompress the stomach and proximal small
intestine, evacuate gastric contents, administer lavage, and instill medications, fiuids and
feedings. Enteral tube placement requires a physician's order. Once per shift and before
use for diagnostic or therapeutic reasons, the enteral tube is observed to ensure that the
system is intact, without leaks, kinks or clots.

Equipment:

Enteral tube (type and size appropriate for intended purpose)
Non-sterile gloves

Hydrocolloid dressing or appropriate skin protective barrier
Transparent dressing

5-10 mL syringe

Stethoscope

Woater-soluble iubricant or sterile water

Syringe feeding pump and extension tubing as needed

A PROCEDURE:

1. Insertion:

a. RN collaborates with attending physician regarding placement of NG/OG tube for
purpose of gastric decompression or gavage feedings.

b. Perform hand hygiene and apply non-sterile gloves.

c. Assemble appropriate equipment.

d. Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system. Refer to Patient Care Services
“Identification, Patient” policy.

e. Position the patient:

i. Place infant on back. Ratients Infant may be swaddled.
ii. A second person may assist with patient containment.

f. Determine length of enteral tube to be inserted by measuring the tube from the tip -of the
nose to the earlobe, and from the earlobe to a space halfway between the umbilicus and
the termination of the xiphoid process (NEMU method).

g. Mark the measured distance on the tube with a small piece of tape or make note of the
preprinted centimeter measurement on the tubing.

h. Place an appropriate sized piece of hydrocolloid dressing -on skin where tube is to be
secured

i. Lubricate the distal end of the tube with sterile water or water-soluble lubricant-then
slowly ilnsert the tube gently through the mouth or nares, aiming down and back.

i——If there appears to be resistance, do not force. Try rolling the enteral tube gently. If
still unable to pass the enteral tube, remove it and try the other nostril.

k—] : =

kk. Do not pass the enteral tube beyond the original mark until further assessment is made.

Women and

Dag:ﬁ;n‘:m CIACCh o) CO'I;::;Ir::Ivo Pediatrics Tg:r:‘m:t::s Committee Committea 2l bl
19/07;
06/09;

08/13, 01119 nla 12/13, 8444804119 n/a n/a 04/14, 05/19 06/19 10/14, nfa 06/11;
08/12;
11/14

76



Women's and NewbornGhildren's Services Marual—NICU
Nasogastric (NG) and Orogastric {(OG) Tube Insertion, Maintenance and Removal Procedura NG-and-OG-nserioniMaintenance/Removal

Page 20f 3

m:l.  Remove enteral tube at once if there are signs of distress, coughing, gasping, apnea,
bradycardia or cyanosis.

a-m. Allow the patient to stabilize and resume insertion procedure.

e-n.  Continue to pass enteral tube until marked position is at the tip of the nostril or at the lip.

p-0. Verify placement of the tube in stomach by
i. Aspirating gastric contents
ii. Listening with a stethoscope over the epigastric area while injecting small

amount (1-23 mL) of air

g-p. Secure the enteral tube in place on top of hydrocolloid dressing with transparent
dressing, making sure not to distort or obstruct the nares.

#q.  Place a small label (tape or patient label) with insertion date on enteral tubing just below
the hub.

s-r.  Discard used supplies and gloves in appropriate receptacle.

ts. Perform hand hygiene.

#t.  Document the following in the patient’'s medical record:
i. Date, time, tube size, tube location, and length of the tube at the mark located at

the mouth or nostril.
ii. Tolerance of procedure.
2. Maintenance:

a. Ongoing proper placement is verified by:
i. Measuring the distance from nares to the distal end of the ng/og tube every shift.
ii. Verifying proper placement prior to use through auscultation and/or aspiration.
ii. Whenever an x-ray is obtained.

b. Evaluate color and amount of aspirate and notify physician for residuals containing
blood, brown or dark green bilious fluid.

c. Short term (PVC) feeding tubes inserted for gastric decompression are changed every

72 hours. Long-term enteral only feeding tubes (polyurethane) are replaced every 30
days.

3. Gavage feedings:

a.

b.
c.

a.

Gavage feeds are given via gravity or by use of a feeding pump utilizing enteral only
syringes and tubing.

Verify proper tube placement prior to every feed.

Check residual on preterm infants prior to feed making note of amount, color and
consistency. Residuals greater than 2030% of previous feed amount are reported to the
physician unless a specific order regarding residual management has already been
obtained. Do not check residuals of infants on continuous feeds unless ordered by the
physician.

For gravity gavage feeds attach barrel of syringe to feeding tube and pour prepared feed
into barrel. Insert plunger into barrel to start fiuid flow. Adjust the height of the barrel to
control flow speed. Do not force feed in with plunger instead allow it to flow by gravity.
For pump feeds, attach syringe to extension tubing and prime tubing then attach the
extension tubing to feeding tube. Place syringe into feeding pump and set pump
infusion rate to infuse feed over the ordered time frame and volume. Extension tubing
should be changed with each feed.

If infant is on continuous feeds, prepare a syringe with up to 4 hours of breastmilk or
formula and attach to infant as described above. A new extension tube is used with
each new syringe. Program pump to deliver the feed at the ordered rate.

Offer a pacifier with gavage feeds to allow infant to associate sucking with a full
stomach.

At the end of the feed, either remove the barrel or extension tubing and clamp feeding
tube or leave a barrel attached for venting if necessary.

Perform hand hygiene and apply non-sterile gloves.

77



Women's and NewbornGhildran's Services Marual—NICU
Nasogastric (NG) and Orogastric (OG) Tube Insertion, Maintenance and Removal Procedure NG-apd-0G-Insedion/Maintenance/Remaval

Page 3of 3

b. Remove semi-permeable transparent dressing using warm water or saline prep pad.

C. Pull tube out of mouth or nose in a steady motion. If resistance is encountered, rotate
the tube and again attempt removal. The tube should not be forced out. If resistance
continues to be met, location of the tube may need to be verified using x-ray.

d. Discard used supplies and gloves in appropriate receptacle.

e. Document the procedure in the patient's electronic medical record.

B. RERERENCE(S):

1.

43,

2:5.

3-6.

Cirgin Ellett, M.L., M.D. Cohen, S.M. Perkins, C.E. Smith, K.A. Lane and J.K. Austin. 2011.
Predicting the insertion length for gastric tube placement in neonates. Journal of
Obstetrics, Gynaecologic and Neonatal Nursing 40(4): 412-421.

Dias, F.5.B,, S5.C.D. Emidio, M.H.B.M. Lopes, A.K.K. Shimo, A.R.M. Beck and E.V.
Carmona. 2017. Procedures for measuring and verifying gastric tube placement in
newborns: an integrative review. Latino-Am. Enfermagem 25: ¢2908. Available at:
http://dx.doi.org/10.1590/1518-8345.1841.2908

Merenstein, G.G. & Gardner, S.L. (2011). Handbook of neonatal intensive care, 7" Ed. St.
Louis, MO. Mosby.

Nguyen, S., A. Fang, V. Saxton and J. Holberton. 2016. Accuracy of a weight-based
formula for neonatal gastric tube insertion length. Advances in Neonatal Care 16(2): 158-
161.

Bowden, V.R. & Greenberg, C.S. (2011). Pediatric nursing procedures, 3™ Ed. Philadelphia. PA.

Lippincott Williams and Wilkins.
lkuta, Linda M., and Sandra S. Beauman, eds. (2011). Policies, Procedures, and Competencies
for Neonatal Nursing Care. Glenview, IL: National Association of Neonatal Nursing Care. .

78



-
(&’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH UNH-SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

08/96 SUBJECT: Co-treatment of Patients

REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03,

01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13, 03/16

Outpatient Behavioral Health Services Department Approval-Date{s}: $4/45—02/18

Division of Psychiatry Approval-Date{s}: 082/4603/19
Pharmacy and-& Therapeutics Committee Approval-Date{s}): nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Bate{s}: 02114605/19
Administration Approval: 0619
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date{s): 03116 nia
Board of Directors Approval-Bate{s): 03/16

A PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines on provision of physician Co-Treatment of patients by attending
psychiatrists.

B. POLICY:

1.

Co-treatment by attending psychiatrists will be facilitated if a patient has a primary psychiatrist in
the community who will continue to manage medications while patient is attending the program.
The Program physician will oversee treatment of the patient in Behavioral Health Qutpatient
program and will collaborate with the community physician with regard to medications, and post
Program follow up. Co-treatment will be directed and certified as medically necessary by the
attending program psychiatrist.

C. PROCEDURES:

1.

Who May Perform/Responsible: Psychiatrists

a. Patients will be admitted and followed by an attending Program psychiatrist. The
Program psychiatrist will complete the admission order, and psychiatric evaluation.
Monthly progress notes will be completed by the psychiatrist and/or Allied Health
Professional (AHP) and will indicate medical necessity and patient's progress toward

treatment goals.

b. The Program psychiatrist and AHP will be encouraged to communicate regularly with the
community psychiatrist to update him/her on the patient's progress and any medication
issues.

C. The Program psychiatrist will direct all treatment planning. The co-treating physicians

are informed regarding any patient concerns and treatment progress.

79



- DELETE — incorporated into

(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center| Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia
Oceanside, California Nurses Services Policy: Post

Anesthesia Standards of Practice

PERI-ANESTHESIA NURSING SERVICES POl and Documentation

SUBJECT: NURSING DOCUMENTATION FOR PANS UNIT
ISSUE DATE: 04/12

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 05/18
Department of Anesthesiology Approval Date(s): n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Administration Approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): nfa

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):




Mursing Documentation for PANS Unit
; Page 2 of 3

81



Mursing Documentation for PANS Unit
I Page 3 of 3

82



2
(GO) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PERI-ANESTHESIA NURSING SERVICES POLIC

DELETE: There are no
alternate areas for PACU
after hours or weekends.

ISSUE DATE: 04/2011

REVISION DATE(S):

Surgical Services Department Approval:
Department of Anesthesiology Approval:
Operating Room Committee Approval:

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval:

Medical Executive Committee Approval:
Administrative Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

SUBJECT: PACU SERVICES IN ALTERNATE
AREA (ICU) AFTER
HOURS/WEEKENDS

POLICY NUMBER:

05/18
0314905/19
nfa
n/a
05/19
06/19
n/a

83



Post Anesthesia Recovery in an Alternate Location (ICU) After Hours
: Page 2 of 2

84



@
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
PERI-ANESTHESIA NURSING SERVICES-ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

08/03 SUBJECT: Post Anesthesia Standards of
Practice and Documentation

| REVISION DATE(S): 10/09,-02/44

Surgical Services Department Approval: 03/18
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: 09/18
Operating Room Committee Approval: 404804/19
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05119
Administration Approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 01/13

A PURPOSE:

1. To outline admission/discharge-assessmentstandards of practice and documentation for
patients in the Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU). Assessment and data collection provide
the clinical basis for an individualized plan of care during the post-operative period. A
comprehensive plan of care shall be developed and implemented for each patient to

] achieve optimal outcomes.
B. POLICY:

1. Ongoing patient assessment and management in PACU shall include phase-specific
components and assessment frequency.

2. Documentation shall appropriately reflect assessment and care provided. Documentation
shall include interventions based on the pian of care, response to interventions,
consultation and collaboration with the patient/family and other healthcare providers.

3. Patients who have met discharge criteria and are being heid in PACU due to bed capacity
restraints shall have assessment, vital signs and documentation per the admitting unit's
Standards of Care and surgeon's orders.
4+:a) The PACU RN shall initiate time sensitive orders (such as medications, labs, X-rays)

during the holding interval in PACU,
B-C. ADMISSION PROCEDURE:

1.

3.

Confirm patient IB-en-admissionidentification upon arrival to PACU. Review medical record
and obtain hand-off report from the anesthesiologist {if-applicable}-and/er
surgical/procedural registered nurse (RN).

Place monitors on patient; and begin continuous monitoring, including:

a) Blood pressure cuff {initially set for every 5 minutes)
b) Pulse Oximeter
c) EKG

Evaluateien-of airway/respiratory status:
a) Auscultate breath sounds and count respiratory rate-
b) Observe Rrespiratory depth and effort-
i Hypoventilation, Obstruction or Hypoxia (implement in descending order if
previous intervention unsuccessful):
1) Reposition the patient as tolerated (head of bed elevated, side lying or
high fowlers)
2) Stimulate the patient 85



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice Policy

Page 2of 7

3-5.

&1.

c)

3) Institute jaw thrust/support, chin lift

4) Insert oral airway. Notify anesthesia before inserting nasal airway.

5) Manually ventilate patient with bag-valve-mask, notify
anesthesiologist and prepare for medication intervention and/or
intubation.

iii. Laryngeal Edema/Spasm:

1) Place in high fowlers position

2) Institute jaw thrust

3) Encourage coughing to clear secretions or gently suction to remove

secretions or foreign material from cords, avoiding vigorous suctions
as it can increase the spasm and result in complete closure of airway.
b}) Notify anesthesiologist, Mmanually ventilate patient with bag-valve-
mask, notify-anesthesiologist-and prepare to administer racemic
epinephrine mini-nebulizer treatment, steroids, or other interventions
to decrease edema.
Monitor O, saturation via pulse oximetry
i. Pulse oximetry sensor wishall be placed on a finger of the hand opposite the
blood pressure cuff, when possible.
. Administer O, to maintain SpO, at 948% or greater, or as ordered by
anesthesiologist.

Evaluation-of Measure vital signs and verbally report vital signs to anesthesiologist:

a)

Vitalsigrs-te-include-bBlood pressure;
-kHeart rate;

Sp0;sr
{Temperature-and
FResplratory rate-

Evaluate+en—ef ftuid status

a)

b)

a)
a}b)
bic)

Assess intravenous (IV) line(s)

i Maintain |V access at all times

ii. Assess [V catheter site(s)

iii. Verify IV fluids, medication dosages and flow rates as indicated
and-aAdminister fluids per anesthesia orders. Surgeon’s |V orders may be initiated

before transfer to the floor, as needed. dlsshaFge—when-ﬂwds-fFem-QR-aFe-sempleted-

Assess type, placement, patency, émount and type of drainage and amount of
suction (as applicable)
Do not move nasogastric (NG) tubes placed for gastric surgery without a physician order

Maintain any continuous irrigations initiated in OR,

Assess condition and location of dressings and type and amount of drainage.

86



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesia Standards of Praclice Policy

Page 3of 7

10.

11.

12

13.

14.

Neurc;logic system:

a) Assess level of consciousness
b) Assess movement of extremities
c) Determine dermatome level of block for patients who have received spinal/epidural
anesthesia by assessing level of sensation.
i. For patients who have received interscalene, supraclavicular, infraclavicular;
or cervical plexus-orsteliate-ganglion blocks:
1) Observe for Horner’s Syndrome, as evidenced by facial flushing,
constrlcted pupll ptosus and congestlon on snde of block

ii. Notify anesthesiologist of a i)lock T4 or higher.
iii. Notify anesthesiologist of an ascending block.

d) Assess pupils as indicated by surgical intervention.

Cardiovascular system:

a) Obtain baseline cardiac rhythm strip

b) All Phase | patients shall have continuous cardiac monitoring in lead Il.

i. For patients receiving local anesthesia, cardiac monitoring is not required
unless otherwise ordered.
c) Assess heart sounds, peripheral circulation, capillary refill, and skin temperature
and color as indicated by surgical intervention or patient’s past medical history.
d) Invasive lines: pulmonary artery catheters/cardiac output, central venous pressure,
or arterial catheters, refer to Standards of Patient care.
Temperature regulation:
a) Obtain temperature (temporal artery)
i. Temp <36°C initiate warming with Bair Paws forced air warming unit
iii. Temp <35°C initiate warming with Bair Paws Hugger forced air warming
blanket-unit
iii. Temp <34°C initiate warming with-Bair Paws forced air warming unit forced
, warmed 1V solutions via fluid warmers, heated aerosol
for O, delivery and place warm blankets around head, neck, and shoulders.
Notify anesthesia.

iv. Temp >37.2°C {99°F) remove extra linens using only one light cover.
b) Monitor temperature every 15 minutes while active rewarming.
c) Notify anesthesiologist for shivering not readily controlled with warming

interventions and anticipate order for Meperidine.
i. Continue supplemental O, when temperature elevated or decreased and
shivering present.
Pain management:
a) See PCS Policy Pain Management
Gastrointestinal system:
a) Assess for bowel sounds in all four quadrants
b) Assess for nausea/vomiting
i Encourage deep breathing, monitor BP and treat hypotension.
ii. Turn patient to side if vomiting, suction if necessary and provide oral care.
Integumentary system:

a) Complete a head to toe skin assessment

b) Position for comfort, straighten linens and change if soiled/wet, and activate air
mattress pumps (as needed).

c) Maintain proper body alignment, place effected extremity in proper position

d) Check for properly fitted appliances, casts, splints, CPM, pneumatic compression

stockings as indicated.
Complete additional surgery/procedure specific assessments as indicated.

87



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesta Standards of Practica Policy

Paged4of7

D. DOCUMENTATION OF ADMISSION ASSESSMENT:

1.

2.

Complete the following sections of Cerner iView, as applicable:
a) PACU Arrival information
b) Vital signs (including temperature)
c) Safety Checks
d) OR Intake and Output
e) IV Drips
f) Pain Assessment and Interventions
i Document acceptable pain number, pain tool used, pain level, location,
laterality, quality, time pattern and aggravating factors
g) Peripheral IV
h) Aldrete | Assessment
i) Artificial airway

i) Head-to-Toe Assessment, as relevant to surgery/procedure and patient condition
k) Dermatome Assessment
1} Surgical/Proceduratl Site

m) All invasive lines, tubes and drains

n) Post-Operative Hydration (including nausea, vomiting and hydration status)

0) Antiembolism Devices

P) Warming/cooling measures

q) Nerve blocks

r) PCA/PCEA

s) Intake and Output

t) Additional elements of assessment as indicated by procedure and
anesthesia/sedation type

Document all medications given on the eMAR

&E. ONGOING ASSESSMENT:Reass-es&mem#engeing-assessmente

1.

8:3.

Vital signs:
a) will-be-documentedTake vital signs (blood pressure, heart rate, respiratory rate, and
Sp0;) -every five minutes X3 then, if stable, every 15 minutes untiH{blosd-pressure—heart
}discharge-criteria-met-while in Phase I.

Fete—reepleatenrateand S8,
b) Continuously monitor SpO, will-be-continuausly-monitered in Phase |.
b)c) Take vital signs every 1 hour, while in Phase Il and PRN.

d) Report abnormal vital signs or SpO; not corrected by interventions, abnormal diagnostic
tests, pain not relieved by prescribed analgesia or failure to attain discharge score ordered
for transfer.

eye) For inpatients, 0Once patient meets PACU discharge criteria, follow surgeon's floor
orders for vital signs.

Pain management:

a)  Assess, treat and reassess-pain per PCS Policy: Pain Management
i Provide pillow and instruct patient to splint abdomen when coughing if

abdominal incision present.
ii. Implement Patient Controlled Analgesia (PCA) if ordered by-surgeon-when
pain-evel-< 4 and teaching has been completed and documented in EHR-

Monitor ard-desument intake and output hourlys:.

\ Totalintal L ntout ariont o —

Neurologic system'

a) Complete Aldrete assessment every 15 mlnutes x4 (or until meets baseline), then
hourly.

b) Assess dermatome level of block hourly for patients receiving spinal/epidural
anesthesia.

88



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice Policy

Page 5af 7

Cardlovascular system:

a)

ib)

All patients will have continuous cardiac monitoring in lead Il with a baseline rhythm strip
obtalned and posted in Phase L

Heart sounds, peripheral circulation, capillary refill, and skin temperature and color will be
assessed as mdlcated by surglcal intervention or patlents past medical history.

Respiratory system:

a)

b)

Monitor airway patency and respiratory rate and effort until patient fully reactive and

responsive.

Monitor SpO;-until-discharge-te-Rhase-Ht.

i. Titrate oxygen to maintain SpO, at 954% unless otherwise ordered.

i Discontinue O, when SpO; is above ordered level, breathing pattern and vitat
signs stable, and patient is easily arouseable.

ii. Monitor for at least 15 minutes after O, discontinued before transferring patient.

iv. Position patient in semifowlers position unless contraindicated.

Retain artificial airways (oral, nasal, or endotracheal tube) until gag andfor cough refiex

returns or extubation criteria met.

Encourage deep breathing with “stir up” routine (initially every five minutes, then every

fifteen minutes with vital signs). G-haage—@;-eannula—whee—paﬂen&—rs—awake—and—@;—ea%e

=05%:

Encourage patient to cough or suction as needed to clear secretions, improve SpO, or

increase depth of respirations.

Extubation:

i. Monitor for thirty minutes following extubation before patient transferred unless
patsent transferred to AGG-U— Cl’ltlcal Care umt

Temperature regulation:

a)

ObtainMonitor temperature (tempora! artery-oral-axillary-or-tympanie) on-admission;
hourly-and-en-dissharge- if temp was 36:2'C or greater on admission.

89



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice Policy
Page 6 of 7

F.

b) If patient temperature was less than 36:2°C on admission, actively warm and
recheck temperature every 30 15 minutes until temp reaches 36.4°C or greater, then
monitor temperature hourly.

_

14.8. Gastrointestinal: -and—geﬁ-msuﬂnaﬂﬂ-

a) Assess for bowel sounds prior to feedmg patlent

bja)  Maintain proper body alignment, effected extremity in proper position and reposition at
least every two hours for patlent who is lmmobrle (post-reglonat anesthesua)

10. Assess surgical sue and any additional elements as indicated by procedure and by
changes in condition.
a) A focused assessment should occur every 15 minutes while in Phase I and every 1
hour wh|le in Phase Il and PRN

DOCUMENTATION OF ONGOING ASSESSMENT AND CARE:
1. Document ongoing assessment in iView in Cerner Miew-RACU-InPt Post Procedure-band:

a) Vital signs (including temperature)

b) Pain assessment
c) Aldrete assessment
d) Dermatome level

90



Surgical Services Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services
Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice Policy

Page 7 of 7
e) Intake and output
f) Additional elements of assessment as indicated by procedure and
anesthesia/sedation type
2, Document medications given, time, dose, route and effects on the MAR
G. DISCHARGE/TRANSFER PROCEDURE AND DOCUMENTATION:ischargefiransfer:

G:H.

Bl

1. For transfer to an inpatient unit, see PANS Policy: Discharge of Post Anesthesia & Post
Sedation Patients to Inpatient Units.

4+~2. For outpatient discharge, see PCS Policy: Standardized Procedure: Discharge from
Outpatlent Post-Anesthesra Semce

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. ASPAN Standards Phase | & Il Recovery

REFERENCES:

1. American Society of Perianesthesia Nurses. (2014). Perianesthesia Nursing Standards,
Practice Recommendations and Interpretive Statements 2015- 2017. Cherry Hill, NJ:
American Society of Perianesthesia Nurses.

2 American Society of Perianesthesia Nurses. (2014). A Competency Based Orientation and

Credentialing Program for the Registered Nurse in the Perianesthesia Setting. Cherry Hill,
NJ: American Society of Perianesthesia Nurses.

2:3.  Schick, L., & Windle, P. E. (Eds.). (2016). PeriAnesthesia Nursing Core Curriculum:
Preprocedure, Phase | and Phase lf PACU Nursing (3rd ed.). S$t. Louis, MO: Elsevier.

91



ASPAN Standards
Phase | & Phase Il Recovery

PHASE |

» Patients are considered Phase | from initial
admission from the OR until the following criteria
are met:

» Patient can maintain airway

» Patient can cough and deep breathe

» Patient's skin is appropriate for ethnicity
»  SpO; >80% with or without O,

» Blood pressure is stable and within +/- 20
from baseline, unless discharged to critical
care unit

P Temperature > 36 degrees, with no
signs/symptoms of hypothermia

» Patient is oriented, responds to simple
questions, and able to call for
assistance/voice concerns.

» Patient has protective reflexes (i.e., gag
reflex)

» Moderate to severe pain is controlled

» No ongoing emesis, minimal level of
nausea

» Spinal anesthesia beginning to resolve or
moving down

P Able to move extremities on command

» Mild/moderate drainage on dressing, that is
not increasing

PHASE i

» Patients are considered Phase Il until the following
criteria are met:

» Able to cough and deep breathe
» Patient's skin is appropriate for ethnicity

»  SpO; > 94% on room air, unless on home
O

» Vital signs stable or baseline
P Temperature at least 36 degrees

P Awake, alert and oriented. Able to voice
concerns/call for assistance.

» Understands basic instructions

» Acceptable pain level

» Acceptable level of nausea

» Voiding and fluid/oral intake as needed

» Dressing/surgical site is clean, dry and
intact

» Ambulation back to baseline or consistent
with post procedure. Demonstrates
understanding of assistive devices as
appropriate

b Patient and home-care provider understand
discharge instructions

»  Written instructions and Rx given
» Post-Op orders complete
» Discharge criteria per institution

» Must be discharged in the company of
a responsible adult.

» Aldrete 10 or baseline for outpatients
and Aldrete >8 for inpatients. Or per
anesthesia order.

Revised 06.2019
Surgical Services Policy: Post Anesthesia Standards of Practice

92



o
@9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

TELEMETRYUNIT
UNITSREGIRG-ROLICY
ISSUE DATE: 06/06 SUBJECT: Management of Telemetry Patients
REVISION DATE(S): 03/07, 09/10, 12/10, 01/11, 842;  POLICY NUMBER:6150-108
44
Cardiology Department Approval: 42/1403/19
Division of Cardiology Approval: 04/4705/19
Pharmacy and-& Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 074705/19
Administration Approval: 06/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 02/11
A. PURPQSE:
1. Telemetry monitored patients will be assured of early detection of arrhythmias by continuous
cardiac monitoring as ordered by a physician.
2. Appropriate nursing care will be implemented in a timely manner as outlined in this policy.
4a. A timely manner is defined in the Standards of Care for Adults
2:3. A Reqistered Nurse (RN) with Advance Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification and successful
completion of the Telemetry Unit Specific Skills lab or the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Specific
Skills lab shall be present on the unit at all times.
3:4.  All Telemetry patients requiring cardiac monitoring shall have a patent intravenous (IV)
access at all times unless otherwise ordered.
5. Admissions, transfers, and patients returning to Telemetry from test/procedures will be
placed on a cardiac monitor immediately upon arrival.
a. Exceptions to placing a patient on a cardiac monitor immediately upon arrival to
the unit:
i Physician order to discontinue cardiac monitoring.
ii. Primary RN or relief RN present in patient’s room and assessing patient’s
stability.
iili. Prior to leaving the patient’s room, the primary RN or relief RN will ensure
the patient’s cardiac rhythm is visible on the cardiac monitoring screen.
b. A six second electrocardiographic (ECG) tracing i.e., strip shall be printed,
interpreted, and posted in the patient’s medical record per the Standards of Care
for Adults — Assessment Cardiovascular System Review.
c. Ongoing assessments and documentation of the patient's cardiac rhythm shall
occur per the Standards of Care for Adults.
4:6. Telemetry monitoring may be interrupted for transport to tests/procedures with a
physician order. See the PleasereviewTelemetry’s Admission Discharge Criteria policy.
a. The primary RN or designee will notify the Monitor Technician (MT) of
interruptions in cardiac monitoring as soon as possible as outlined in this policy.
b. The MT will notify a RN or ACT immediately when a patient’s cardiac rhythm is not
visible.
7. Patients that have their telemetry monitoring interrupted or disconnected from the view

of the central monitoring station for any reason {except for physician order) shall be
placed back on the cardiac monitor i.e., telemetry box immediately once identified by
nursing staff or nursing staff are notified by the MT. Exceptions are as follows:

a. RN or Advanced Care Technician (ACT) is providing direct care for the patient.
b. RN present in patient’s room and identifies patient’s condition as stable.

93



Telemetry Uni i :
Managemenit of Telemetry Patients Policy

Page 2of 7
c. Patient refuses to allow nursing staff to attach/apply the cardiac monitor.

i ACTs shall notify the primary RN and MT as soon as possible.

ii. RNs shall provide education to the patient on the rationale for telemetry
monitoring, the importance of reapplying the cardiac monitor;. eOnce the
cardiac monitor is applied, document events and education provided in the
Electronic Health Record {(EHR).

1) If the patient continues to refuse to allow staff to apply the cardiac
monitor after receiving education, the primary RN shall notify the
appropriate physician, ANM/Relief Charge RN, and MT.

A:2) If a physician order is obtained to discontinue telemetry monitoring,
the Primary RN shall notify the MT and ANM/Relief Charge RN.

3) If a physician order is not obtained to discontinue telemetry
monitoring and the patient is-stillcontinues to refuseing the monitor,
the primary RN shall notify the ANM/Relief Charge RN, nursing staff
on their assigned unit, and MT. Document interventions in EHR and
increase surveillance of the patient as ordered.

8. Documentation

a. Document the following in the EHR in a timely manner:
i. Delays in placement of the cardiac monitor not related to direct patient care
being provided.
it. Patient’s status during delay in cardiac monitoring or visualization of the
cardiac rhythm.,

B. TELEMETRY MONITORING AND LEAD PLACEMENT PROCESS:
2:1.  The patient shall be prepared for monitoring as follows:
a. Skin preparation
&i.  Clean skin with soap and water and pat dry.
ii. Use a surgical clipper to prep patients as necessary. Do not use a razor to
remove excessive body hair.
iii. Gently rub surface of the skin to increase capillary blood flow.

94



Telemetry

Unit-Spesific-Relicy-Manual
Management of Telemetry Patients Policy

Page 3 of 7

8:2.

4:3.

iv. Obtain clean lead wires, attach the lead wires to the electrodes, and place
the electrodes on the patient's skin as directed by the diagram on the
telemetry box.

k. Electrodes shall be removed and-skinsare-provided-daily-as-needed: daily
during AM or PM hygiene care. Apply new electrodes after completing
hygiene care.

vi. The telemetry box corresponding with the patient’'s room number or assigned to
the patient shall be used unless DASH monltonng is required.

Standard monitoring leads shali be Lead |l and VI. Secondary lead selection

shall be based on the patient’s pathology. ECG monitoring shall be Y y ;\
e
i

continuously with minimum interruptions. See-mage:
For Dysrhythmia Monitoring: Monitor per the American Association of Critical
Care Nurses Dysrhythmia Practice Alert:

ﬂ“”P-PP'P‘

Select the best monitoring leads for dysrhythmia identification
Display two leads when possible

Lead V1 to diagnose wide QRS complex

Lead Il to diagnose atrial activity and measure heart rate

For patients without definitive Acute Coronary Syndrome (ACS) but are suspected
of having or are being assessed for ACS, leads 1l and V1 should be considered for
monitoring

Default alarm settings may be altered at the discretion of the primary RN.

2a.

The MT shall not e‘useuss—a#l—changee—m default cardlac settmgs or make parameter
adjustments. sel 2
slerms:

The RN or primary Telemetry RN shall record a six (6) second ECG tracmglstnp at the

beglnnlng of the shift. m

a-b.

The ECG tracing/strip shall be 'measured, interpreted and posted in the EHR within
in a timely manner and PRN as outlined in the Standards of Patient Care for
Adults.

The followmg shall be documented in the EHR 1f present $he-hea¢t-¥a¢e—the-\lead

i. Ventricular heart rate

il Lead interpreted

iii. Wave form measurements of the following:
1) PR Interval
2) QRS Interval
3) QT Interval

BER-latamal

SRStatoral

iv. -ntervalPresence of ectopic beats

95



Telemelry Unit-SpecificRalisy-Maruat
Management of Telemetry Patients Policy
Page 4 of 7

4 kv, Documentation of the following is recommended but not required:
1) ST segment elevation or depression
42) Morphology of P waves and T waves
6. The primary RN Eash-RN-nurse-shall document their assigned patient's rhythm every four
hours and PRN with any significant rhythm or rate changes or the presence of new ectopic
beats in inthe EHRmedicalrecord.
a. The ECG tracings/strips may be posted in the medical record per the primary RN’s
discretion.

Tochnici (LTT)-and-Unit S taries{US)
6-7. The MT shall report allchanges in cardiac rhythms to the RN or relief RN and-documentths

#8. Life threatening dysrhythmias shall be reported to a. RN by telephone or by using the emergency
red telephone immediately. The MT shall:

a. Print a continuous rhythm strip.
b. Post the continuous rhythm strips as directed by an RN.
c. Perform task as outlined by the primary RN or designee.
9, All significant changes in patient’s status, rhythm, or heart rate (HR) requirerequire a review of

rhythm, vital signs and assessment of the patient for associated symptoms.
4-a. ECG tracings/strips associated with changes in a patient’s status shall be posted
in the medical record.

10. The primary Telemetry RN shall notify the MT when bedside therapies or procedures are
initiated if times permits. i.e., cardioversion, bronchoscopy, temporary pacing, initial
administration of antidysrhythmiesAantidysrhythmics.

8-a. The primary RN will provide instructions to the MT if additional monitoring is
required.

| B:.C. PROCESS FOR CLEANING TELEMETRY BOXES AND LEAD WIRES:
1. On discharge or transfer:

a. Remove the Felemetry lead wires from electrodes.

b. Remove electrodes from patient's skin.

C. Disconnect lead wires from the Ftelemetry box.

Remevelele_mew-bex—#en?-pla-sue-peueh

d. Remove batteries from Felemetryrtelemetry box and stere-store in the proper location
identified on the unit. erdiscard

e. Clean the telemetry box and lead wires using the appropriate disinfectant per
manufacturer's recommendation. Allow lead wires and telemetry box to dry and
then place both the lead wires and telemetry box in the proper storage location,

f. Discard damage lead wires.
g. Notify an ANM/Relief Charge Nurse if debris cannot be removed from a telemetry
box.

i. When debris cannot be removed using a disinfectant wipe, send the

| &.D. TRANSPORTING TELEMETRY PATIENTS REQUIRING CARDIAC MONITORING:
1. A physician’s order is required to interrupt cardiac monitoring for transport to test/procedures.
a. RNs shall not contact physicians by telephone for transport orders,

96



Telemetry Ui i
Management of Telemetry Patients Policy

Page 50f 7
b. When the RN determines a patient would be safe to transport to test/procedures without
an RN and a cardiac monitor capable of defibrillating, the RN will consult with the
physician during daily rounds to obtainsesk an order to interrupt Telemetry monitoring
for transport to tests/procedures without a nurse.
2. Patients without a physician order to interrupt cardiac monitoring for transport shall be
transported with an RN and a cardiac monitor capable of defibrillating. The transporting
RN shall:
a. Meet the requirements outlined in the purpose statement #3 of this policy.

4+b. Remain in the procedure area with the patient. Exceptions: the procedure RN has
ACLS certification and accepts hand-off,

A Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP) shall be asked to assist with transports as needed.

Exceptions: Patients requiring intermittent BiPap may transport without a RCP with a

physician’s order or with the recommendations of the RCP providing care for the patient.
23. Ifthe RN has concerns relating to a patient's current stability, recent changes in a patient’s
sendition,condition or the probable impact of test/treatment/iransfer are contraindications to
transport;: the RNraurse will consult the patient's physician and other interdisciplinary team
members regarding recommendations for rescheduling the test/procedure, beside testing e
procedures; or alternative interventions.

34. The following patients shall be transported off the unit with nurse and monitor via bed or gurney,
no physician order is required:
Unstable vital signs or cardiac rhythm
Unstable respiratory status
Change in mental status
Patients with continuous intravenous (V) infusions of antidysrhythmic or vasoactive
medications
e. Endotracheal or tracheostomy intubated patients on mechanical ventilation
i. Patients requiring mechanical ventilation will be accompanied by RCP, an ACLS
provider RN, and a portable cardiac monitor to all off unit procedures.
f. Temporary pacemaker
g. Conscious sedation
h. Transfer to ICU
4.5. The primary or relief RN will document all patient transports off of the unit and patient’s
returns from test/procedures in the EHR per the

aoop

B-E. MONITOR TECHNICIAN SHIFT TASK PROCESS:

1. Communicating to nursing staff. The MT shall:
a. Communicate changes in the patient’s baseline cardiac rhythm, rate, and ectopic
findings to the primary RN or relief RN immediately.
b. Communicate interruptions in cardiac monitoring not related to transport to the
primary RN or relief RN.
c. Interruptions in monitoring not related to transport:

i Notify the primary RN, if monitoring is not resumed or unable to contact
any RN or ACT on the patient’s assigned unit, THEN

97



Telemetry Unit-Specific-Rolicy-Manu